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��ز � ر�رٹ
�
 ڈا�

 
��ز 
�
� � �� وا� �ل � � � � آڈٹ �ہ ��� ��اروں � �� ا� ر�رٹ � �� ��  2022�ن  30� � ڈا�

 �۔  �س ����

 آ�� � ��
 � � �� �� � �� ذ� � د��� � �:

 2022 2021 

 � رو�) ......... 000(' ......... 

 )138,537( )135,165(  � � �ل � � �(�ن)

� 27,487 28,484 

 )110,053( )107,678( � � � (�ن)

 8,150 8,348 �ل � � � د� �� آ��

 ) رو�1.98( رو� )1.94( �دى اور �ور (�ن) � � رو�

 � �� ورك � �ن �ر�ر��
�
 اور ��� ر�ر� �

، اس � ��ں � ��، � �ؤ اور ا�� � � �ت، اس � ���
�
� وا� ��ں � � � ا�� � �ف � �ر �دہ � � � �� ��

 �� �ر � � �� �۔

�ار ر�• 
�
�� �� ��    � �۔� � ا�ؤ� � ���

 ا�ؤ� ����ں � � �� � � � اور ا�ؤ� � � �ل اور دا�ا� �•    � � �۔��� ��اروں � �رى � ���

� �، � � ���IFRS� ا��ا� ��� ر�ر� � �رات (• 
�
�ت � �رى � �وى � � �۔)، � � ����ن � �� ��

�
��  

�� � � �۔ ا�رو� آڈٹ اور اس �ح � د� �ا� � ��• 
�
� � �� �

�
 � اور ا� �� �ا� � در��

�
 �ر � ا�رو� �ول � �م ڈ��

 ذر� �م � �

    �  � �۔�ا� � �� �۔ ا�رو� �ول � �ا� � � ا��
�
� اور �م � � ��

�
 رى � � �ر � �رى ر� � � � � �ول � �ط ��

 � �� �ص � � �۔ � � �رى �� � � �� � � �•  � ��� 

 •  �  �ر� � �� ��ں � �� �دى ر� � ��، � � �ڈ آف �ر�ر�� �  � � � ���� � �۔ 2019�ر�، �ر�ر��
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 � دس ��ں � �ى آ�� اور ��� ڈ� �� � � � �۔• 

� � ���رے � ��ت ��� ��اروں � ��ں � دى � �۔• 
�
 � اور ���

 �ز� � �اد  2022�ن  30•   ۔) :1082021� ( 119��

��ز � �ر ( �ل �• 
�
 (4دوران �رڈ آف ڈا�  ) ا�س ���� �۔1) ا�س اور �� ر�رس ا� ر��� � � ا��

 � � � � � �م �ں � � �ز �  PSX����ن ا�ك ا�   � � �ں � �� � �، �رڈ � و��� رول ��

�ہ � � � اور ا� � � ������
� �
 � �۔ "ا��" � �ر � � �� �۔ � � ا�� ڈ�� � �� ر� �� اس � ��

 اور � �
�
  �رت � �ن� ���

 � �ن � � ا�� ��ت ا� � � �۔
�
 � �ن اور � ���

�
��� � 

����� �ں � ذر�
�
 �ت اور � ��، � ا�� آ�، � �� آ�، � ��ى، ا��ز اور ان � ���

�
� � �ز �  � � ڈا�

 رت � � �۔�� �

�ہ
� �
��ز اور اس � �ں � �ر�د� � ��

�
 �رڈ آف ڈا�

�ہ �۔
� �
��ز اور اس � �ں � �ر�د� � ��

�
�� � �� �دہ �� �ر � �� �رڈ آف ڈا� �

�
�
��
�
�
 �� �رڈ � �د 

FY21 ہ �رڈ � �ر �۔�
� �
 � � �ر�د� � ��

��ز
�
 ڈا�

��ز اور ان � �ں � �
�
 �ہ �� �۔ �رڈ آف ڈا� �� � ا� ا� ��

�
 � �ت �ڈ ��دہ �رڈ �ل � ا�� آ� ڈا�

�ا� � � �۔
�
 �ر� � �� � � �ن � � �  آف �ر�ر��

�ہ �ر� ذ� �ر � �� � �:
� �
�� � �� �

�
�
��
�
�

 

 �دت •

 ���� اور � �• 

 ��ں � ا�م• 

 �رو���رى �/��• 

 �ر� اور �• 

 ��� �ر�د� •

�ات• 
�
 ��ے � ا�
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�ہ
� �
 � اى او � �ر�د� � ��

�ہ �، � 
� �
 �رڈ � �ر �۔�ل � دوران، �رڈ � �� ر�رس ا� ر��� � � � اى او � �ر�د� � ��

 � ا�� � �و�
� � � �۔ 47� ا�� � ادا � � �و� � �ت �ٹ  �ت � ���

�
 � � � ��ط �� ��

 �� اور � ا�� آ� � �دار
 �ر� � � �� �� اور � ا�� آ� � ا� ا� اور ا� ا� �دار �۔  � �� � ���س �م ا�رات � � �ڈ آف �ر�ر��

�ا� �
�
��ز � ا�م اور �دت �

�
� �۔ �� � اور وہ �رڈ � ا��ں � �ارت �� �۔ �� � �دى �دار � � �رڈ آف ڈا�

�
�

 را� �۔ �� � و � � آزاد � �رڈ � �� �ا�ہ � اور � ا�� آ� �اہ را��  � ذر� �رڈ اور � � ا�� � در�ن ��

 اور � � �د اور � � �رو���ر ��� دو�ے � � آزاد � � �� � آزادا� � � �دم � � �۔

� �، اور � ا�� آ� � �ا� � �� ا� 
�
�ا� �ا�م د� �۔ �رڈ، �ر� � �ں � �ذ � �رش اور �ا� ��

�
�

�ار ر� � ذ� دار �۔
�
�� � � �� �ول، آ�� اور ا� ��

� �
 ا��ا�

�ت
�
�� ��� � � 

 �ر�  � ��ز � � � �ورى �، � ا� 25� ��  2019� � �� �ر�ر��
�
� آ� اور � �� آ� � �رڈ آف ڈا�

�ت � �ر و �ض اور �رى � � ا� � د�ں � � � � ��� ��اروں � � �۔ �رڈ � �ر � �، آڈٹ � �
�
 �ر�

�رى اور ا�ر دے د���۔ �� �ل � ا�م � � ��� �ز� � اس �ن � �د �، �رى �� اور ��� � � ��� ��اروں � 

� �� وا� �� �دى ��ں اور و�ے � �
�
�ر� � در�ن � � �� �ز� � ��

�
��ز � ر�رٹ � �

�
 � �۔� � اور ڈا�

 آڈ�ز
� �� وا� � اور ا� �� � و� . ا� �، �M/s. H.A.M.Dآڈ�ز، 

�
�، � � آ�ہ ��� �ل � � ر��

��
�
�
ر�ڈ ا�ؤ����

�رى � �، ا�ں � �د � دو���رہ �رى � � � � �۔ آڈٹ � اور �رڈ � ا� �� �ل � � �و� آڈ�ز � �ر � ان � 

�� � ��
�
 رز � آ�ہ ��� �ل � � �ر و �ض اور �رى دى ��۔�رش � �، �

 آؤٹ �
�وى �ر � �� ا� �

� ��� ر�، � � و� � اور �� �اط زر � د���ؤ ��
�
 ا� � �� � �

�
� ر�، �ص �ر � � � آ�

�
�� �
���� � س � �ں �� �ل � ��

 � ا�� � و� � �۔
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  �ى � � ��� � ا�ر �� � �ر � � � �ح �وش �� وا� �� �ل � ا�م ��
�
��ھ �  bps 675اس � �� �� �15 %

 رو�  ��  �
�
 �رہ  22� � � �، �� �ل  PKR 217.65/USD� � �  38.2� �۔ اس و� �

�
 ا�ؤ� �

�
�� � �USD 

 � ا�� �ر � ا� � ڈا�۔  USD 25.7� �رہ �، �� 17.4 �و�ام  IMF� � اور، ����ن � �� � � � �� �، � ��

 
�
�  FY23 �ل �۔ � �دى �� دو���رہ �وع �� � ارد �د � � �ر�ل � �� �، � � � �رى ذ� ��

�ت � �� � �ا۔ آج � � � آپ � � ر� �، ����ن �ہ � ��� ��ں � و� � �ب � زد � �۔ ��ك
�
 ا��

USD �وع � � �، ��� رو� �
�
�وى �ر � ا�ء � �ں � � �� � �د � � � � � ��

� �ورى �   �� �� � � �� � ��

� �ا �، اس � ���و�د � ����ن � 
�
�اج � � � � ا�

�
�رے ا�  �۔ IMFو� � �� � �  �و�ام � دو���رہ �وع �� � ���ت ��

�� اور ���� � �دى ڈ�� � �دى ڈ�� � ��ں � � � 
�
�رے � �دى �رو���ر �ص �ر � �ا� ��- FY23 � � ر�ل� 

، و�ہ �� ��، �� ا� � �دى ڈ�� � ��ں � � � اور اس � �رى آرڈر �� �� �  ��
� ���� ��  �

�
 � دو�ر �۔ �� ����

�� � �ر �۔ � � ��، � � � اور � � �ں � 
�
�ز �� � اور اس و� � وہ �

� �
� ا��ا�

� �� � ��ں � �دت ر���� ����

� �رٹ  ��ں�رز � � � � � � �ا� � �۔ د� 
�ا� �� ر� � � � ور� ���������

�
��� �ز � �

�����
� �رے �رو���ر � �� �

� �� �� � �� ��ز ر� �� �۔
� �
 � ڈ�� ��

� ���� ��  �
�
���� �� � ،��

�
� ،� ��

�
� 

�ں �ں۔� �م ا� ��رز 
�
�� � �  � � �� �ں اور ان � � ���

�
 � ان � ��� � � �� ادا ��

 

 �۔ �
�
��ز � � اور ��

�
 �رڈ آف ڈا�

 

 

� �� �ا� �� 
 � ا�� آ�

 02 24�رى 22
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Statement of Compliance
With Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

For the year ended June 30, 2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 12 as per the following:

Male: Eleven (11)

Female: ( )

2. The composition of board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors Mr. Asghar Imam Khalid (Chartered Accountant)

b) Other Non-executive Director Mr. Talal Yousuf Mohamed Y. Najibi

Mr. Nabil Abdul Rahman Ahmad Arif

Mr. Fahad Abdul Aziz Eshaq

Mr. Muhammad Hafiz

Mr. ArshadAhmed

Hafiz AbdulWaheed

Hafiz Abdul Sami

Hafiz Abdul Aleem

M/s Javeria Sami (Female Director)

Hafiz Abdul Haseeb

M/s Javeria Sami (Female Director)

Hafiz Abdul Haseeb

c) Executive Directors Hafiz Abdul Majid (CEO)

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including

this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable)

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to

disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the

company.Acomplete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or

amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/

shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of theAct and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board are presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board

for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements ofAct and the Regulations with respect to frequency,

recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8. The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance

with theAct and these Regulations.

9. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of eleven (12) eminent Directors, out of which five (04) Directors are

already certified under the Directors Training Program as follow:

1. Hafiz Abdul Haseeb

2. Hafiz Abdul Sami

3. Hafiz Abdul Aleem

4. Syed Asghar Imam Khalid

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer and head of internal audit, including their

remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

–

– One 1
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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2022

Note 30 June 30 June
ASSETS 2022 2021

Restated
---------(Rupees in '000)---------

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 5,789,196        5,821,483      
Long term deposits 6 10,813             6,936             

5,800,009        5,828,419      
Current Assets
Investment 7 -                   -                 
Stores and spares 8 95,612             60,930           
Stock-in-trade 9 1,694,864        1,642,180      
Trade debts (unsecured) 10 33,281             19,990           
Loan and advances 11 31,799             27,372           
Trade deposits 12 7,600               31,601           
Other receivables 13 35,491             45,328           
Advance tax - net of provision 14 15,765             8,754             
Cash and bank balances 15 12,448             22,408           

1,926,860        1,858,563      

TOTAL ASSETS 7,726,869        7,686,982      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves

Share Capital 16 554,844           554,844         
Share premium 109,437           109,437         
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 17 3,610,630        3,626,182      
General reserves 40,000             40,000           
Unappropriated profit 1,027,701        1,113,900      
Total equity 5,342,612        5,444,363      

Non-Current Liabilities

Long Term Loans 18 49,348             -                 
Deferred liabilities 19 1,583,491        1,242,178      

1,632,839        1,242,178      
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 279,910           667,349         
Short term advances from Sponsors/Directors 21 471,508           333,092         

751,418           1,000,441      

Contingencies and commitments 22

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,726,869        7,686,982      

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_________________                       ________________       ____________________
Hafiz Abdul Majid                          Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive                                  Director Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended June 30 2022
`

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Restated
Note 

Revenue from contract with customers (Net) 23 134,317         97,243         
Cost of revenue from contract with customers 24 (237,416)        (169,886)      
Gross (Loss) (103,099)        (72,643)        

Selling and distribution expenses 25 (4,029)            (7,197)          
Administrative expenses 26 (44,531)          (27,010)        

(48,560)          (34,207)        

(151,659)        (106,850)      

Other operating charges 27 -                     -               
Other operating income 28 17,412           5,285           

(134,247)        (101,565)      

Finance cost 29 (918)               (36,972)        

(Loss) before taxation (135,165)        (138,537)      

Taxation 30 27,487           28,484         

(Loss) after taxation (107,678)        (110,053)      

----------------(Rupees)------------------

(Loss) per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 31 (1.94)              (1.98)            

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_________________                   __________________      ____________________
Hafiz Abdul Majid                      Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive                                  Director Chief Financial Officer

--------(Rupees in '000)-------
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended June 30 2022
`

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Restated
Note 

Revenue from contract with customers (Net) 23 134,317         97,243         
Cost of revenue from contract with customers 24 (237,416)        (169,886)      
Gross (Loss) (103,099)        (72,643)        

Selling and distribution expenses 25 (4,029)            (7,197)          
Administrative expenses 26 (44,531)          (27,010)        

(48,560)          (34,207)        

(151,659)        (106,850)      

Other operating charges 27 -                     -               
Other operating income 28 17,412           5,285           

(134,247)        (101,565)      

Finance cost 29 (918)               (36,972)        

(Loss) before taxation (135,165)        (138,537)      

Taxation 30 27,487           28,484         

(Loss) after taxation (107,678)        (110,053)      

----------------(Rupees)------------------

(Loss) per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 31 (1.94)              (1.98)            

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_________________                   __________________      ____________________
Hafiz Abdul Majid                      Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive                                  Director Chief Financial Officer

--------(Rupees in '000)-------
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30 2022

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated
-------(Rupees in '000)--------

(107,678)      (110,053)      

-               

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit and loss account

 -   Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 18.1.5 8,348           8,150           

-               

 -   Impact of tax (2,421)          (2,364)          
5,927           5,787           

(101,751)      (104,266)      

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 _______________                    ___________________   _______________
Hafiz Abdul Majid                      Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive                                 Director Chief Financial Officer

Loss/Profit after taxation

Total comprehensive income for the period

Surplus on revaluation - net of deferred tax
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30 2022

Issued, Revaluation
Subscribed & Surplus

Paid-up Capital

Balance as at 01 July 2020 - reported 554,844       109,437       40,000         3,468,318    1,409,957 5,582,556    

adjustments due to investment entry reversal -               -              -              122,258       (206,623) (84,365)       
Balance as at 01 July 2020 - restated 554,844       109,437       40,000         3,590,576    1 ,203,334 5 ,498,191

Total comprehensive income for the period

Loss for the year ended June 30, 2021 -               -              -              -              (110,053) (110,053)     
Other comprehensive income -               -              -              -              5,787 5,787           
Total comprehensive income for the year -               -              -              -              (104,266) (104,266)     

Transfer 
property, plant and equipment - net of
deferred tax -               -              -              (14,832)       14,832 -              
Effect of change in tax rate -               -              -              50,439         -                   50,439         

Balance as at  30 June, 2021 - restated 554,844       109,437       40,000         3,626,183    1,113,900 5,444,364    

Balance as at 01 July 2021 554,844       109,437       40,000         3,626,183    1,113,900 5,444,364    

Total comprehensive income for the period

Loss for the year ended June 30, 2022 -               -              -              -              (107,678) (107,678)     
Other comprehensive income / (loss) -               -              -              -              5,927 5,927           
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year -               -              -              -              (101,751) (101,751)     

Transfer 
property, plant and equipment - net of -               -              -              (15,552)       15,552 -              
deferred tax -               -              -              -                   -              
related deferred tax in surplus -               -              -              -              -              
Effect of change in tax rate -               -              -              -                   -              

-              -              
Balance as at  30 June, 2022 554,844       109,437       40,000         3,610,630    1,027,701 5,342,613    

 _______________  _______________  _______________
Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------------

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Share 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Unappropriate
d Profit

Total
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Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Note 2022 2021
Re-stated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES --------'(Rupees in '000)--------

Loss before taxation (135,165)        (138,537)        
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5.1 34,835           36,209           
Provision of Staff gratuity 19.1.4 15,996           12,296           
Provision of earned leave 1,505             
Notional income (17,412)          -                 

34,924           48,505           
Operating Loss before working capital changes (100,241)        (90,032)          

Changes in working capital 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets 32 (71,246)          (74,508)          

(Increase) / decrease in current liability 32 38,655           (59,730)          

(32,591)          (134,238)        

Gratuity paid (781)               (646)               
Income Tax paid 14 (8,341)            (3,373)            

(9,122)            (4,019)            
Net cash used in operating activities (141,954)        (228,290)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Addition to property, plant and equipment(including CWIP). 5 (2,545)            (4,223)            
Long term deposits 6 (3,877)            -                 
Net cash (used) from investing activities (6,422)            (4,223)            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Long Term Financing-Secured -                 -                 
Short term Sponsors loan and advances 20 138,416         250,346         
Net cash (used) / generated from financing activities 138,416         250,346         
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Flows from all Sources (9,960)            17,833           

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 22,408           4,575             

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT END OF THE YEAR 15 12,448           22,408           

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 _____________________                    _____________________  _______________________
     Hafiz Abdul Majid                              Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
     Chief Executive                                       Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1

1.2

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND MITIGATING FACTORS:

Mitigating Factors:

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 
October 9, 1983 as a public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) (formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective 
and business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes 
(tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of applying three layer high 
density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, Karachi and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh 
province.
These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. 
Consolidated financial statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-
7

The management of the company strive hard to improve upon the operating performance and 
in this connection made concerted efforts in the government and other circles which would pave 
the way for the sizeable enhancement in the company sale in the future period ahead. The 
company management has adopted a rationing policy and cost reduction program particularly 
reducing the 2/3rd workforce to reduce cost of production but simultaneously retaining of the 
key personnel to ensure that Company should not lose its technical strength. The Chief 
Executive along with other Sponsors and Directors of the company have provided financial 
support to the company by way of short-term loan aggregating Rs 471,462  thousand (2021: 
333,091 thousand). Furthermore, subject to approval of board of directors, the management is 
also considering a plan of disposal of the portion of unusable plot of land to provide sizeable 
injection of funds in the company for future operations. In addition, company has also made an 
understanding with a sponsor for the purpose of improving its operations and financing 
requirements. Director have also evaluated the future outlook of the company and are optimistic 
that the company would be able to operate as a "Going Concern" for a foreseeable future 
period. Therefore, in view of the mitigating factors, these financial statements have been 
prepared by applying going concern basis of accounting.

Total Sales in the current period was Rs 134,317 thousand compare to Rs 97,243 thousand in 
the previous year showing a small rise due to income from coating activities. However, its 
principal business line seamless continued to show a declining trend which was Rs: 21,509 
thousand compared to Rs: 77,260 thousand in the previous year. Since a eight-year period 
including 2022 a declining trend was regularly observed year after year in the principle line of 
business of the company. As a consequence, company was faced with serious liquidity 
problems to arrange raw material for production of pipes.Production of seamless pipe remained 
closed in the major part of the year due to non availability of high price raw material in the 
international market and relative paucity of financial resources. The company has suffered 
gross and net loss in the year and net loss after tax was Rs.107,678 thousand Compared to 
2021: Rs 110,053 thousand in previous year aggregating Rs.223,994 thousand in three years 
period. The above foregoing conditions along with other related matters cast significant doubts 
about company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a foreseeable future period and the 
company may not be able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of 
business.



Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Note 2022 2021
Re-stated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES --------'(Rupees in '000)--------

Loss before taxation (135,165)        (138,537)        
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5.1 34,835           36,209           
Provision of Staff gratuity 19.1.4 15,996           12,296           
Provision of earned leave 1,505             
Notional income (17,412)          -                 

34,924           48,505           
Operating Loss before working capital changes (100,241)        (90,032)          

Changes in working capital 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets 32 (71,246)          (74,508)          

(Increase) / decrease in current liability 32 38,655           (59,730)          

(32,591)          (134,238)        

Gratuity paid (781)               (646)               
Income Tax paid 14 (8,341)            (3,373)            

(9,122)            (4,019)            
Net cash used in operating activities (141,954)        (228,290)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Addition to property, plant and equipment(including CWIP). 5 (2,545)            (4,223)            
Long term deposits 6 (3,877)            -                 
Net cash (used) from investing activities (6,422)            (4,223)            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Long Term Financing-Secured -                 -                 
Short term Sponsors loan and advances 20 138,416         250,346         
Net cash (used) / generated from financing activities 138,416         250,346         
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Flows from all Sources (9,960)            17,833           

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 22,408           4,575             

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT END OF THE YEAR 15 12,448           22,408           

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 _____________________                    _____________________  _______________________
     Hafiz Abdul Majid                              Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
     Chief Executive                                       Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1

1.2

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND MITIGATING FACTORS:

Mitigating Factors:

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 
October 9, 1983 as a public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) (formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective 
and business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes 
(tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of applying three layer high 
density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, Karachi and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh 
province.
These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. 
Consolidated financial statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-
7

The management of the company strive hard to improve upon the operating performance and 
in this connection made concerted efforts in the government and other circles which would pave 
the way for the sizeable enhancement in the company sale in the future period ahead. The 
company management has adopted a rationing policy and cost reduction program particularly 
reducing the 2/3rd workforce to reduce cost of production but simultaneously retaining of the 
key personnel to ensure that Company should not lose its technical strength. The Chief 
Executive along with other Sponsors and Directors of the company have provided financial 
support to the company by way of short-term loan aggregating Rs 471,462  thousand (2021: 
333,091 thousand). Furthermore, subject to approval of board of directors, the management is 
also considering a plan of disposal of the portion of unusable plot of land to provide sizeable 
injection of funds in the company for future operations. In addition, company has also made an 
understanding with a sponsor for the purpose of improving its operations and financing 
requirements. Director have also evaluated the future outlook of the company and are optimistic 
that the company would be able to operate as a "Going Concern" for a foreseeable future 
period. Therefore, in view of the mitigating factors, these financial statements have been 
prepared by applying going concern basis of accounting.

Total Sales in the current period was Rs 134,317 thousand compare to Rs 97,243 thousand in 
the previous year showing a small rise due to income from coating activities. However, its 
principal business line seamless continued to show a declining trend which was Rs: 21,509 
thousand compared to Rs: 77,260 thousand in the previous year. Since a eight-year period 
including 2022 a declining trend was regularly observed year after year in the principle line of 
business of the company. As a consequence, company was faced with serious liquidity 
problems to arrange raw material for production of pipes.Production of seamless pipe remained 
closed in the major part of the year due to non availability of high price raw material in the 
international market and relative paucity of financial resources. The company has suffered 
gross and net loss in the year and net loss after tax was Rs.107,678 thousand Compared to 
2021: Rs 110,053 thousand in previous year aggregating Rs.223,994 thousand in three years 
period. The above foregoing conditions along with other related matters cast significant doubts 
about company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a foreseeable future period and the 
company may not be able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of 
business.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- -

- - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement
   

-

-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved 
Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Effective In Current Year and Not Relevant to the Company

Effective Date

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IAS 1
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - The objective of the 
amendment is to give timely relief to 
lessees to covid-19-related rent 
concessions while still enabling them to 

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan
which are measured at present value of defined benefits
less fair value of plan assets; and

the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery
and coating sheds are stated at fair values which are 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
that:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) 
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments ''disclosures"

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - The 
amendments narrowed and clarified the 
definition of a business, the 
amendments aiming to resolve the 

IAS 41 Agriculture

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements - 
amendments to its definition of material 
to make it easier for companies to 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1

1.2

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND MITIGATING FACTORS:

Mitigating Factors:

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 
October 9, 1983 as a public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) (formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective 
and business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes 
(tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of applying three layer high 
density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, Karachi and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh 
province.
These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. 
Consolidated financial statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-
7

The management of the company strive hard to improve upon the operating performance and 
in this connection made concerted efforts in the government and other circles which would pave 
the way for the sizeable enhancement in the company sale in the future period ahead. The 
company management has adopted a rationing policy and cost reduction program particularly 
reducing the 2/3rd workforce to reduce cost of production but simultaneously retaining of the 
key personnel to ensure that Company should not lose its technical strength. The Chief 
Executive along with other Sponsors and Directors of the company have provided financial 
support to the company by way of short-term loan aggregating Rs 471,462  thousand (2021: 
333,091 thousand). Furthermore, subject to approval of board of directors, the management is 
also considering a plan of disposal of the portion of unusable plot of land to provide sizeable 
injection of funds in the company for future operations. In addition, company has also made an 
understanding with a sponsor for the purpose of improving its operations and financing 
requirements. Director have also evaluated the future outlook of the company and are optimistic 
that the company would be able to operate as a "Going Concern" for a foreseeable future 
period. Therefore, in view of the mitigating factors, these financial statements have been 
prepared by applying going concern basis of accounting.

Total Sales in the current period was Rs 134,317 thousand compare to Rs 97,243 thousand in 
the previous year showing a small rise due to income from coating activities. However, its 
principal business line seamless continued to show a declining trend which was Rs: 21,509 
thousand compared to Rs: 77,260 thousand in the previous year. Since a eight-year period 
including 2022 a declining trend was regularly observed year after year in the principle line of 
business of the company. As a consequence, company was faced with serious liquidity 
problems to arrange raw material for production of pipes.Production of seamless pipe remained 
closed in the major part of the year due to non availability of high price raw material in the 
international market and relative paucity of financial resources. The company has suffered 
gross and net loss in the year and net loss after tax was Rs.107,678 thousand Compared to 
2021: Rs 110,053 thousand in previous year aggregating Rs.223,994 thousand in three years 
period. The above foregoing conditions along with other related matters cast significant doubts 
about company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a foreseeable future period and the 
company may not be able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of 
business.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- -

- - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement
   

-

-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved 
Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Effective In Current Year and Not Relevant to the Company

Effective Date

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IAS 1
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - The objective of the 
amendment is to give timely relief to 
lessees to covid-19-related rent 
concessions while still enabling them to 

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan
which are measured at present value of defined benefits
less fair value of plan assets; and

the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery
and coating sheds are stated at fair values which are 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
that:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) 
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments ''disclosures"

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - The 
amendments narrowed and clarified the 
definition of a business, the 
amendments aiming to resolve the 

IAS 41 Agriculture

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements - 
amendments to its definition of material 
to make it easier for companies to 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

3.4.2

Effective Date

A)

B)

C)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The change in lease payments results 
in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease 
immediately preceding the change;

The standard is not likely to have any 
effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Amendment regarding the definition of 
accounting estimates, the standard 
defines the concept of a “change in 
accounting estimates

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The 
amendment clarifies which fees an 
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in assessing whether to 
derecognize a financial liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments regarding the 
classification of current and non-current 
liabilities.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments 
not yet effective
IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

there is no substantive change to the 
other terms and conditions of the lease.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments 
updating a reference to the Conceptual 
Framework

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
regarding the expiry date of the deferral 
approach

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) 
has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to 
provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. Under the standard’s previous requirements, 
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease 
modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on 
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 
Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if 
they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or 
before 30 June 2021; and



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- -

- - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement
   

-

-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved 
Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Effective In Current Year and Not Relevant to the Company

Effective Date

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IAS 1
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - The objective of the 
amendment is to give timely relief to 
lessees to covid-19-related rent 
concessions while still enabling them to 

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan
which are measured at present value of defined benefits
less fair value of plan assets; and

the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery
and coating sheds are stated at fair values which are 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
that:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) 
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments ''disclosures"

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - The 
amendments narrowed and clarified the 
definition of a business, the 
amendments aiming to resolve the 

IAS 41 Agriculture

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements - 
amendments to its definition of material 
to make it easier for companies to 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
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3.4.2

Effective Date

A)

B)

C)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The change in lease payments results 
in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease 
immediately preceding the change;

The standard is not likely to have any 
effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Amendment regarding the definition of 
accounting estimates, the standard 
defines the concept of a “change in 
accounting estimates

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The 
amendment clarifies which fees an 
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in assessing whether to 
derecognize a financial liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments regarding the 
classification of current and non-current 
liabilities.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments 
not yet effective
IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

there is no substantive change to the 
other terms and conditions of the lease.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments 
updating a reference to the Conceptual 
Framework

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
regarding the expiry date of the deferral 
approach

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) 
has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to 
provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. Under the standard’s previous requirements, 
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease 
modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on 
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 
Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if 
they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or 
before 30 June 2021; and

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

-

-

3.5 Use of estimates and judgments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial 
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows:

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets - The amendments 
specify the costs a company should 
include as the cost of fulfilling a contract 
when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous

The IASB issued ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)’ with amendments that address issues that might affect 
financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with 
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2021. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB, which are yet 
to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose 
of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standard

IAS 12 Income taxes - Amendment regarding 
to clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on leases and 
decommissioning obligations

IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment - The 
amendments clarify the prohibition on 
an entity from deducting from the cost 
of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that 
asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity 
recognizes the proceeds from selling 
such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.



3.4.2

Effective Date

A)

B)

C)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The change in lease payments results 
in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease 
immediately preceding the change;

The standard is not likely to have any 
effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Amendment regarding the definition of 
accounting estimates, the standard 
defines the concept of a “change in 
accounting estimates

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The 
amendment clarifies which fees an 
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in assessing whether to 
derecognize a financial liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments regarding the 
classification of current and non-current 
liabilities.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments 
not yet effective
IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

there is no substantive change to the 
other terms and conditions of the lease.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments 
updating a reference to the Conceptual 
Framework

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
regarding the expiry date of the deferral 
approach

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) 
has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to 
provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. Under the standard’s previous requirements, 
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease 
modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on 
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 
Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if 
they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or 
before 30 June 2021; and
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January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

-

-

3.5 Use of estimates and judgments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial 
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows:

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets - The amendments 
specify the costs a company should 
include as the cost of fulfilling a contract 
when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous

The IASB issued ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)’ with amendments that address issues that might affect 
financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with 
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2021. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB, which are yet 
to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose 
of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standard

IAS 12 Income taxes - Amendment regarding 
to clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on leases and 
decommissioning obligations

IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment - The 
amendments clarify the prohibition on 
an entity from deducting from the cost 
of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that 
asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity 
recognizes the proceeds from selling 
such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.

3.5.1 Property, plant and equipment - carrying value Rs  5,789.196 million   
Note 5

3.5.2 Investments - carrying value Rs 241.469 million

Note 7

3.5.3 Stock-in-trade and stores and spares - carrying value Rs 1,694.311 million
Note 9

3.5.4 Trade debts and other receivables - carrying value Rs 33.281 million
Note 10

3.5.5 Employee benefits - carrying value Rs 105.093 million
Note 18.1.2

3.5.6 Taxation - carrying value Rs 15.765 million
Note 18.2

Investment in Joint Venture is stated under equity method of accounting, Details of the 
company's investment are stated in Note 7 to the financial statements.

The Company at each balance sheet date reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and 
stores and spares to assess any diminution in their respective carrying values. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and 
spares with a corresponding effect on the profit and loss account of those future years.

The Company reviews its doubtful trade debts and other receivables at each balance sheet 
date to assess the adequacy of provision there against (if any). In particular, judgment is 
required in the estimation of the amount and future recoveries & cash flows when determining 
the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan - staff gratuity are determined through actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of 
these benefits, such estimates are subject to uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to 
carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in note 18 to these financial statements.

The liability related to compensated absences is determined by the management based on 
entitlement of absences of employees.

In making estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account 
the applicable tax laws. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all unused tax losses and available 
credits to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable temporary differences and taxable 
profits will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant 
judgment is exercised to determine the amount of deferred tax asset to be recognized.

The Company’s management reviews the rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives used in 
the calculation of depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment and the value of the 
assets for possible impairment at each financial year end. Further, the Company estimates 
revalued amounts and useful lives of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and 
coating sheds based on the periodic valuations carried out by independent professional valuer. 
Any change in estimate in future might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, 
impairment, surplus on revaluation and annual transfer of incremental depreciation from surplus 
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account to unappropriated profit together with 
any tax effect. The effect of change in revision in useful life as well as revaluation has 
been disclosed in Note 5.



January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

-

-

3.5 Use of estimates and judgments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial 
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows:

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets - The amendments 
specify the costs a company should 
include as the cost of fulfilling a contract 
when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous

The IASB issued ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)’ with amendments that address issues that might affect 
financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with 
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2021. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB, which are yet 
to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose 
of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standard

IAS 12 Income taxes - Amendment regarding 
to clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on leases and 
decommissioning obligations

IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment - The 
amendments clarify the prohibition on 
an entity from deducting from the cost 
of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that 
asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity 
recognizes the proceeds from selling 
such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.

Committed to Excellence 43 www.huffaz.pk

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Ltd. Annual Report 2022

3.5.1 Property, plant and equipment - carrying value Rs  5,789.196 million   
Note 5

3.5.2 Investments - carrying value Rs 241.469 million

Note 7

3.5.3 Stock-in-trade and stores and spares - carrying value Rs 1,694.311 million
Note 9

3.5.4 Trade debts and other receivables - carrying value Rs 33.281 million
Note 10

3.5.5 Employee benefits - carrying value Rs 105.093 million
Note 18.1.2

3.5.6 Taxation - carrying value Rs 15.765 million
Note 18.2

Investment in Joint Venture is stated under equity method of accounting, Details of the 
company's investment are stated in Note 7 to the financial statements.

The Company at each balance sheet date reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and 
stores and spares to assess any diminution in their respective carrying values. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and 
spares with a corresponding effect on the profit and loss account of those future years.

The Company reviews its doubtful trade debts and other receivables at each balance sheet 
date to assess the adequacy of provision there against (if any). In particular, judgment is 
required in the estimation of the amount and future recoveries & cash flows when determining 
the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan - staff gratuity are determined through actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of 
these benefits, such estimates are subject to uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to 
carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in note 18 to these financial statements.

The liability related to compensated absences is determined by the management based on 
entitlement of absences of employees.

In making estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account 
the applicable tax laws. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all unused tax losses and available 
credits to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable temporary differences and taxable 
profits will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant 
judgment is exercised to determine the amount of deferred tax asset to be recognized.

The Company’s management reviews the rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives used in 
the calculation of depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment and the value of the 
assets for possible impairment at each financial year end. Further, the Company estimates 
revalued amounts and useful lives of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and 
coating sheds based on the periodic valuations carried out by independent professional valuer. 
Any change in estimate in future might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, 
impairment, surplus on revaluation and annual transfer of incremental depreciation from surplus 
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account to unappropriated profit together with 
any tax effect. The effect of change in revision in useful life as well as revaluation has 
been disclosed in Note 5.
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4.0

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

4.1.1 Operating assets and depreciation

Initial Recognition

Measurement

Subsequent expenditure

Depreciation

.

.

.

.

C.     Borrowing costs, if any
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a 
component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset so replaced 
is derecognized. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account 
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged on reducing balance method or units of production method at 
rates specified in note 5.1 to the financial statements and is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 
Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use while no 
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and 
equipment that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted 
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
the same, as those applied in the preparation of financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 and are enumerated as follows:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such 
item can be measured reliably. Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including borrowing costs, if 
any. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment (except leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery 
and coating sheds) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. Factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds are stated at revalued amount 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, whereas leasehold land is stated 
at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any. The value assigned to leasehold land is not 
amortized as the respective leases are expected to be renewed for further periods on payment 
of relevant rentals. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:
A.     its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting 
trade discounts and rebates; and
B.     any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

The company has applied units of production method for computing depreciation on Plant & 
Machinery in accordance with paragraph 62 of IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment'. 
Management believes that depreciation charge applying units of production method represents 
a charge based on the expected use or output of Plant & Machinery (Note# 33) and resulted in 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Revaluation surplus

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Investment

4.3 Stores and spares 

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less 
provision for impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on 
management's estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the 
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of Raw and 
Coating materials, labor and applicable production overheads. The comapny reviewes the Net 
realizable value(NRV)  of finished goods based on internal/ external evaluation in order to 
asess any diminution in the respective carrying value of stock of Finished goods in hand. Net 
realizable value(NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business 
less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up 
to the balance sheet date. 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating 
sheds is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the 
estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued 
assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred 
taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE 
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset 
is derecognized. When revalued assets are disposed off, any related amount included in the 
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and 
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and 
installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment 
when they are available for intended use.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as 
well as provisions of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The Company uses equity method of 
accounting where by its proportionate share of income/loss of JV company on the basis of 
latest available financial statement. Investment has been derecognized in the current period 
with retrospective effect ( Note# 7.2).



4.0

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

4.1.1 Operating assets and depreciation

Initial Recognition

Measurement

Subsequent expenditure

Depreciation

.

.

.

.

C.     Borrowing costs, if any
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a 
component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset so replaced 
is derecognized. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account 
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged on reducing balance method or units of production method at 
rates specified in note 5.1 to the financial statements and is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 
Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use while no 
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and 
equipment that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted 
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
the same, as those applied in the preparation of financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 and are enumerated as follows:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such 
item can be measured reliably. Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including borrowing costs, if 
any. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment (except leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery 
and coating sheds) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. Factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds are stated at revalued amount 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, whereas leasehold land is stated 
at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any. The value assigned to leasehold land is not 
amortized as the respective leases are expected to be renewed for further periods on payment 
of relevant rentals. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:
A.     its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting 
trade discounts and rebates; and
B.     any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

The company has applied units of production method for computing depreciation on Plant & 
Machinery in accordance with paragraph 62 of IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment'. 
Management believes that depreciation charge applying units of production method represents 
a charge based on the expected use or output of Plant & Machinery (Note# 33) and resulted in 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.
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Revaluation surplus

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Investment

4.3 Stores and spares 

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less 
provision for impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on 
management's estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the 
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of Raw and 
Coating materials, labor and applicable production overheads. The comapny reviewes the Net 
realizable value(NRV)  of finished goods based on internal/ external evaluation in order to 
asess any diminution in the respective carrying value of stock of Finished goods in hand. Net 
realizable value(NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business 
less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up 
to the balance sheet date. 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating 
sheds is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the 
estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued 
assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred 
taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE 
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset 
is derecognized. When revalued assets are disposed off, any related amount included in the 
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and 
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and 
installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment 
when they are available for intended use.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as 
well as provisions of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The Company uses equity method of 
accounting where by its proportionate share of income/loss of JV company on the basis of 
latest available financial statement. Investment has been derecognized in the current period 
with retrospective effect ( Note# 7.2).

4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

4.7 Compensated absences

4.8 Trade and other payables

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings

4.10 Revenue recognition

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less 
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective markup rate method.

Income from sale of seamless pipe/Coating is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, the company's performance obligation is complete as 
soon as goods are delivered. Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 60/90-180 days 
period extended on a case to case basis. The Company considers whether there are other 
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the 
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. The credit is allowed to costumers 
generally is a 60/90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis. Receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience 
over past years as well as any subsequent recoveries are considered for computing 
expected credit losses using a 'simplified approach'.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the 
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive 
income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and 
current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The most recent valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2021. Details of the scheme are given in note 18.1 of 
these financial statements.

The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period 
in which employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated 
absences.



Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30 2022

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated
-------(Rupees in '000)--------

(107,678)      (110,053)      

-               

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit and loss account

 -   Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 18.1.5 8,348           8,150           

-               

 -   Impact of tax (2,421)          (2,364)          
5,927           5,787           

(101,751)      (104,266)      

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 _______________                    ___________________   _______________
Hafiz Abdul Majid                      Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive                                 Director Chief Financial Officer

Loss/Profit after taxation

Total comprehensive income for the period

Surplus on revaluation - net of deferred tax

Revaluation surplus

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Investment

4.3 Stores and spares 

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less 
provision for impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on 
management's estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the 
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of Raw and 
Coating materials, labor and applicable production overheads. The comapny reviewes the Net 
realizable value(NRV)  of finished goods based on internal/ external evaluation in order to 
asess any diminution in the respective carrying value of stock of Finished goods in hand. Net 
realizable value(NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business 
less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up 
to the balance sheet date. 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating 
sheds is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the 
estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued 
assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred 
taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE 
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset 
is derecognized. When revalued assets are disposed off, any related amount included in the 
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and 
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and 
installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment 
when they are available for intended use.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as 
well as provisions of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The Company uses equity method of 
accounting where by its proportionate share of income/loss of JV company on the basis of 
latest available financial statement. Investment has been derecognized in the current period 
with retrospective effect ( Note# 7.2).
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

4.7 Compensated absences

4.8 Trade and other payables

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings

4.10 Revenue recognition

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less 
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective markup rate method.

Income from sale of seamless pipe/Coating is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, the company's performance obligation is complete as 
soon as goods are delivered. Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 60/90-180 days 
period extended on a case to case basis. The Company considers whether there are other 
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the 
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. The credit is allowed to costumers 
generally is a 60/90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis. Receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience 
over past years as well as any subsequent recoveries are considered for computing 
expected credit losses using a 'simplified approach'.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the 
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive 
income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and 
current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The most recent valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2021. Details of the scheme are given in note 18.1 of 
these financial statements.

The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period 
in which employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated 
absences.

4.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.12 Borrowing costs

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from 
assessment framed / finalized (if any) during the year.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and their tax base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner 
of the realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also 
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 
the effective markup rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank 
balances. Short-term borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

4.7 Compensated absences

4.8 Trade and other payables

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings

4.10 Revenue recognition

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less 
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective markup rate method.

Income from sale of seamless pipe/Coating is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, the company's performance obligation is complete as 
soon as goods are delivered. Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 60/90-180 days 
period extended on a case to case basis. The Company considers whether there are other 
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the 
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. The credit is allowed to costumers 
generally is a 60/90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis. Receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience 
over past years as well as any subsequent recoveries are considered for computing 
expected credit losses using a 'simplified approach'.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the 
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive 
income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and 
current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The most recent valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2021. Details of the scheme are given in note 18.1 of 
these financial statements.

The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period 
in which employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated 
absences.

4.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.12 Borrowing costs

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from 
assessment framed / finalized (if any) during the year.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and their tax base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner 
of the realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also 
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 
the effective markup rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank 
balances. Short-term borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

4.16.2 Non-derivative financial assets

4.16.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

4.16.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the statement of profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand, balances with banks and borrowings availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to 
base the calculation of expected credit loss. (Note 4.5)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the 
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial 
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1

1.2

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND MITIGATING FACTORS:

Mitigating Factors:

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 
October 9, 1983 as a public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) (formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective 
and business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes 
(tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of applying three layer high 
density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, Karachi and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh 
province.
These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. 
Consolidated financial statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-
7

The management of the company strive hard to improve upon the operating performance and 
in this connection made concerted efforts in the government and other circles which would pave 
the way for the sizeable enhancement in the company sale in the future period ahead. The 
company management has adopted a rationing policy and cost reduction program particularly 
reducing the 2/3rd workforce to reduce cost of production but simultaneously retaining of the 
key personnel to ensure that Company should not lose its technical strength. The Chief 
Executive along with other Sponsors and Directors of the company have provided financial 
support to the company by way of short-term loan aggregating Rs 471,462  thousand (2021: 
333,091 thousand). Furthermore, subject to approval of board of directors, the management is 
also considering a plan of disposal of the portion of unusable plot of land to provide sizeable 
injection of funds in the company for future operations. In addition, company has also made an 
understanding with a sponsor for the purpose of improving its operations and financing 
requirements. Director have also evaluated the future outlook of the company and are optimistic 
that the company would be able to operate as a "Going Concern" for a foreseeable future 
period. Therefore, in view of the mitigating factors, these financial statements have been 
prepared by applying going concern basis of accounting.

Total Sales in the current period was Rs 134,317 thousand compare to Rs 97,243 thousand in 
the previous year showing a small rise due to income from coating activities. However, its 
principal business line seamless continued to show a declining trend which was Rs: 21,509 
thousand compared to Rs: 77,260 thousand in the previous year. Since a eight-year period 
including 2022 a declining trend was regularly observed year after year in the principle line of 
business of the company. As a consequence, company was faced with serious liquidity 
problems to arrange raw material for production of pipes.Production of seamless pipe remained 
closed in the major part of the year due to non availability of high price raw material in the 
international market and relative paucity of financial resources. The company has suffered 
gross and net loss in the year and net loss after tax was Rs.107,678 thousand Compared to 
2021: Rs 110,053 thousand in previous year aggregating Rs.223,994 thousand in three years 
period. The above foregoing conditions along with other related matters cast significant doubts 
about company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a foreseeable future period and the 
company may not be able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of 
business.
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4.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.12 Borrowing costs

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from 
assessment framed / finalized (if any) during the year.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and their tax base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner 
of the realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also 
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 
the effective markup rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank 
balances. Short-term borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

4.16.2 Non-derivative financial assets

4.16.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

4.16.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the statement of profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand, balances with banks and borrowings availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to 
base the calculation of expected credit loss. (Note 4.5)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the 
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial 
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset.

4.16.3 Financial liabilities

4.16.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

4.16.3.2 Trade and other payables

4.17

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up 
bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognizes the financial 
liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability 
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized 
cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption 
value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade 
receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 
recognized in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).
 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever 
considered necessary, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
(subsequent collection) and the general economic conditions of the country.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the 
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60/90-180 
days (extended in case to case basis) past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1

1.2

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND MITIGATING FACTORS:

Mitigating Factors:

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 
October 9, 1983 as a public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) (formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective 
and business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes 
(tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of applying three layer high 
density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, Karachi and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh 
province.
These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. 
Consolidated financial statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-
7

The management of the company strive hard to improve upon the operating performance and 
in this connection made concerted efforts in the government and other circles which would pave 
the way for the sizeable enhancement in the company sale in the future period ahead. The 
company management has adopted a rationing policy and cost reduction program particularly 
reducing the 2/3rd workforce to reduce cost of production but simultaneously retaining of the 
key personnel to ensure that Company should not lose its technical strength. The Chief 
Executive along with other Sponsors and Directors of the company have provided financial 
support to the company by way of short-term loan aggregating Rs 471,462  thousand (2021: 
333,091 thousand). Furthermore, subject to approval of board of directors, the management is 
also considering a plan of disposal of the portion of unusable plot of land to provide sizeable 
injection of funds in the company for future operations. In addition, company has also made an 
understanding with a sponsor for the purpose of improving its operations and financing 
requirements. Director have also evaluated the future outlook of the company and are optimistic 
that the company would be able to operate as a "Going Concern" for a foreseeable future 
period. Therefore, in view of the mitigating factors, these financial statements have been 
prepared by applying going concern basis of accounting.

Total Sales in the current period was Rs 134,317 thousand compare to Rs 97,243 thousand in 
the previous year showing a small rise due to income from coating activities. However, its 
principal business line seamless continued to show a declining trend which was Rs: 21,509 
thousand compared to Rs: 77,260 thousand in the previous year. Since a eight-year period 
including 2022 a declining trend was regularly observed year after year in the principle line of 
business of the company. As a consequence, company was faced with serious liquidity 
problems to arrange raw material for production of pipes.Production of seamless pipe remained 
closed in the major part of the year due to non availability of high price raw material in the 
international market and relative paucity of financial resources. The company has suffered 
gross and net loss in the year and net loss after tax was Rs.107,678 thousand Compared to 
2021: Rs 110,053 thousand in previous year aggregating Rs.223,994 thousand in three years 
period. The above foregoing conditions along with other related matters cast significant doubts 
about company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a foreseeable future period and the 
company may not be able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of 
business.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- -

- - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement
   

-

-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved 
Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Effective In Current Year and Not Relevant to the Company

Effective Date

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IAS 1
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - The objective of the 
amendment is to give timely relief to 
lessees to covid-19-related rent 
concessions while still enabling them to 

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan
which are measured at present value of defined benefits
less fair value of plan assets; and

the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery
and coating sheds are stated at fair values which are 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
that:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) 
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments ''disclosures"

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - The 
amendments narrowed and clarified the 
definition of a business, the 
amendments aiming to resolve the 

IAS 41 Agriculture

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements - 
amendments to its definition of material 
to make it easier for companies to 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
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4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

4.16.2 Non-derivative financial assets

4.16.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

4.16.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the statement of profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand, balances with banks and borrowings availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to 
base the calculation of expected credit loss. (Note 4.5)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the 
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial 
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset.

4.16.3 Financial liabilities

4.16.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

4.16.3.2 Trade and other payables

4.17

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up 
bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognizes the financial 
liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability 
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized 
cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption 
value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade 
receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 
recognized in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).
 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever 
considered necessary, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
(subsequent collection) and the general economic conditions of the country.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the 
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60/90-180 
days (extended in case to case basis) past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Finacial Libilities 

4.18 Initial recognition and measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings (if any) are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings (if any). 

DE recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the DE recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in 
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, sponsor loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent 
measurement 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1

1.2

2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND MITIGATING FACTORS:

Mitigating Factors:

Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 
October 9, 1983 as a public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted 
on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) (formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective 
and business of the Company is manufacturing and selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes 
(tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of applying three layer high 
density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, Karachi and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh 
province.
These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. 
Consolidated financial statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-
7

The management of the company strive hard to improve upon the operating performance and 
in this connection made concerted efforts in the government and other circles which would pave 
the way for the sizeable enhancement in the company sale in the future period ahead. The 
company management has adopted a rationing policy and cost reduction program particularly 
reducing the 2/3rd workforce to reduce cost of production but simultaneously retaining of the 
key personnel to ensure that Company should not lose its technical strength. The Chief 
Executive along with other Sponsors and Directors of the company have provided financial 
support to the company by way of short-term loan aggregating Rs 471,462  thousand (2021: 
333,091 thousand). Furthermore, subject to approval of board of directors, the management is 
also considering a plan of disposal of the portion of unusable plot of land to provide sizeable 
injection of funds in the company for future operations. In addition, company has also made an 
understanding with a sponsor for the purpose of improving its operations and financing 
requirements. Director have also evaluated the future outlook of the company and are optimistic 
that the company would be able to operate as a "Going Concern" for a foreseeable future 
period. Therefore, in view of the mitigating factors, these financial statements have been 
prepared by applying going concern basis of accounting.

Total Sales in the current period was Rs 134,317 thousand compare to Rs 97,243 thousand in 
the previous year showing a small rise due to income from coating activities. However, its 
principal business line seamless continued to show a declining trend which was Rs: 21,509 
thousand compared to Rs: 77,260 thousand in the previous year. Since a eight-year period 
including 2022 a declining trend was regularly observed year after year in the principle line of 
business of the company. As a consequence, company was faced with serious liquidity 
problems to arrange raw material for production of pipes.Production of seamless pipe remained 
closed in the major part of the year due to non availability of high price raw material in the 
international market and relative paucity of financial resources. The company has suffered 
gross and net loss in the year and net loss after tax was Rs.107,678 thousand Compared to 
2021: Rs 110,053 thousand in previous year aggregating Rs.223,994 thousand in three years 
period. The above foregoing conditions along with other related matters cast significant doubts 
about company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a foreseeable future period and the 
company may not be able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities in the normal course of 
business.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- -

- - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement
   

-

-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved 
Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Effective In Current Year and Not Relevant to the Company

Effective Date

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IAS 1
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - The objective of the 
amendment is to give timely relief to 
lessees to covid-19-related rent 
concessions while still enabling them to 

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan
which are measured at present value of defined benefits
less fair value of plan assets; and

the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery
and coating sheds are stated at fair values which are 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
that:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) 
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments ''disclosures"

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - The 
amendments narrowed and clarified the 
definition of a business, the 
amendments aiming to resolve the 

IAS 41 Agriculture

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements - 
amendments to its definition of material 
to make it easier for companies to 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

3.4.2

Effective Date

A)

B)

C)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The change in lease payments results 
in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease 
immediately preceding the change;

The standard is not likely to have any 
effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Amendment regarding the definition of 
accounting estimates, the standard 
defines the concept of a “change in 
accounting estimates

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The 
amendment clarifies which fees an 
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in assessing whether to 
derecognize a financial liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments regarding the 
classification of current and non-current 
liabilities.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments 
not yet effective
IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

there is no substantive change to the 
other terms and conditions of the lease.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments 
updating a reference to the Conceptual 
Framework

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
regarding the expiry date of the deferral 
approach

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) 
has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to 
provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. Under the standard’s previous requirements, 
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease 
modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on 
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 
Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if 
they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or 
before 30 June 2021; and
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4.16.3 Financial liabilities

4.16.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

4.16.3.2 Trade and other payables

4.17

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up 
bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognizes the financial 
liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability 
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized 
cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption 
value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade 
receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 
recognized in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).
 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever 
considered necessary, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
(subsequent collection) and the general economic conditions of the country.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the 
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60/90-180 
days (extended in case to case basis) past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Finacial Libilities 

4.18 Initial recognition and measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings (if any) are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings (if any). 

DE recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the DE recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in 
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, sponsor loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent 
measurement 

4.19 Segment reporting

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. 
Management monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes 
and coating income) separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource 
allocation and performance assessment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which these are approved by the members and board of directors.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- -

- - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement
   

-

-

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved 
Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Effective In Current Year and Not Relevant to the Company

Effective Date

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IAS 1
January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - The objective of the 
amendment is to give timely relief to 
lessees to covid-19-related rent 
concessions while still enabling them to 

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the 
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 

the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan
which are measured at present value of defined benefits
less fair value of plan assets; and

the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery
and coating sheds are stated at fair values which are 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
that:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) 
issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments ''disclosures"

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - The 
amendments narrowed and clarified the 
definition of a business, the 
amendments aiming to resolve the 

IAS 41 Agriculture

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements - 
amendments to its definition of material 
to make it easier for companies to 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

3.4.2

Effective Date

A)

B)

C)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The change in lease payments results 
in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease 
immediately preceding the change;

The standard is not likely to have any 
effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Amendment regarding the definition of 
accounting estimates, the standard 
defines the concept of a “change in 
accounting estimates

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The 
amendment clarifies which fees an 
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in assessing whether to 
derecognize a financial liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments regarding the 
classification of current and non-current 
liabilities.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments 
not yet effective
IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

there is no substantive change to the 
other terms and conditions of the lease.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments 
updating a reference to the Conceptual 
Framework

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
regarding the expiry date of the deferral 
approach

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) 
has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to 
provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. Under the standard’s previous requirements, 
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease 
modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on 
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 
Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if 
they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or 
before 30 June 2021; and

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

-

-

3.5 Use of estimates and judgments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial 
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows:

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets - The amendments 
specify the costs a company should 
include as the cost of fulfilling a contract 
when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous

The IASB issued ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)’ with amendments that address issues that might affect 
financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with 
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2021. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB, which are yet 
to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose 
of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standard

IAS 12 Income taxes - Amendment regarding 
to clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on leases and 
decommissioning obligations

IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment - The 
amendments clarify the prohibition on 
an entity from deducting from the cost 
of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that 
asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity 
recognizes the proceeds from selling 
such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.
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Finacial Libilities 

4.18 Initial recognition and measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings (if any) are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings (if any). 

DE recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the DE recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in 
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, sponsor loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent 
measurement 

4.19 Segment reporting

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. 
Management monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes 
and coating income) separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource 
allocation and performance assessment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which these are approved by the members and board of directors.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.



3.4.2

Effective Date

A)

B)

C)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The change in lease payments results 
in revised consideration for the lease 
that is substantially the same as, or less 
than, the consideration for the lease 
immediately preceding the change;

The standard is not likely to have any 
effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Amendment regarding the definition of 
accounting estimates, the standard 
defines the concept of a “change in 
accounting estimates

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The 
amendment clarifies which fees an 
entity includes when it applies the ‘10 
per cent’ test in assessing whether to 
derecognize a financial liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - 
Amendments regarding the 
classification of current and non-current 
liabilities.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and amendments 
not yet effective
IFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

there is no substantive change to the 
other terms and conditions of the lease.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments 
updating a reference to the Conceptual 
Framework

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments 
regarding the expiry date of the deferral 
approach

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) 
has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to 
provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent 
concessions. Under the standard’s previous requirements, 
lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease 
modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on 
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 
Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if 
they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

(Annual Period 
beginning an or 

after)

Any reduction in lease payments affects 
only payments originally due on or 
before 30 June 2021; and

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

-

-

3.5 Use of estimates and judgments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial 
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows:

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets - The amendments 
specify the costs a company should 
include as the cost of fulfilling a contract 
when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous

The IASB issued ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)’ with amendments that address issues that might affect 
financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with 
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2021. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB, which are yet 
to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose 
of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standard

IAS 12 Income taxes - Amendment regarding 
to clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on leases and 
decommissioning obligations

IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment - The 
amendments clarify the prohibition on 
an entity from deducting from the cost 
of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that 
asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity 
recognizes the proceeds from selling 
such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.

3.5.1 Property, plant and equipment - carrying value Rs  5,789.196 million   
Note 5

3.5.2 Investments - carrying value Rs 241.469 million

Note 7

3.5.3 Stock-in-trade and stores and spares - carrying value Rs 1,694.311 million
Note 9

3.5.4 Trade debts and other receivables - carrying value Rs 33.281 million
Note 10

3.5.5 Employee benefits - carrying value Rs 105.093 million
Note 18.1.2

3.5.6 Taxation - carrying value Rs 15.765 million
Note 18.2

Investment in Joint Venture is stated under equity method of accounting, Details of the 
company's investment are stated in Note 7 to the financial statements.

The Company at each balance sheet date reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and 
stores and spares to assess any diminution in their respective carrying values. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and 
spares with a corresponding effect on the profit and loss account of those future years.

The Company reviews its doubtful trade debts and other receivables at each balance sheet 
date to assess the adequacy of provision there against (if any). In particular, judgment is 
required in the estimation of the amount and future recoveries & cash flows when determining 
the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan - staff gratuity are determined through actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of 
these benefits, such estimates are subject to uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to 
carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in note 18 to these financial statements.

The liability related to compensated absences is determined by the management based on 
entitlement of absences of employees.

In making estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account 
the applicable tax laws. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all unused tax losses and available 
credits to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable temporary differences and taxable 
profits will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant 
judgment is exercised to determine the amount of deferred tax asset to be recognized.

The Company’s management reviews the rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives used in 
the calculation of depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment and the value of the 
assets for possible impairment at each financial year end. Further, the Company estimates 
revalued amounts and useful lives of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and 
coating sheds based on the periodic valuations carried out by independent professional valuer. 
Any change in estimate in future might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, 
impairment, surplus on revaluation and annual transfer of incremental depreciation from surplus 
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account to unappropriated profit together with 
any tax effect. The effect of change in revision in useful life as well as revaluation has 
been disclosed in Note 5.
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4.19 Segment reporting

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. 
Management monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes 
and coating income) separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource 
allocation and performance assessment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which these are approved by the members and board of directors.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

5.1.1

30 June 30 June
5.2 Allocation of depreciation 2022 2021

Re-stated

Cost of revenue from contract with customers 26.1 34,154         32,265             
Administrative expenses 28 680              656                  

34,834         32,922             

5.3 Revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment

5.4 Fair Value Hierarchy

Levels of fair value are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note --------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------------------

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,080,905    -               1,080,905        
Building - factory -              1,765,309    -               1,765,309        
Plant and machinery -              2,797,507    -               2,797,507        
Coating sheds - owned -              66,205         -               66,205             
Vehicles -              2,651           -               2,651               
Others -              13,358         -               13,358             
As at June 30, 2022 -              5,725,934    -               5,725,934        

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,064,075    -               1,064,075        
Building - factory -              1,608,591    -               1,608,591        
Plant and machinery -              2,798,422    -               2,798,422        
Coating sheds - owned -              63,506         -               63,506             
Vehicles -              3,313           -               3,313               
Others -              14,890         -               14,890             
As at June 30, 2021 -              5,552,797    -               5,552,797        

During the year company has reclassified investment into property plant and equipment consequent upon withdrawl of 
investment (Note. 7.2). The corresponding depreciation on assets transferred has also been accounted for 2018 to 
2021 in order to record assets at their respective fair value.

Management is planning to make an assesment of revaluation of its assets in the subsequent period 2023, so that 
current valuation assigned would be updated

The forced sale value of plant and machinery as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 1,960 million.

The forced sale value of land and building as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 2,313 million. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

The Company carries its leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds at revalued amounts 
under IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. The latest valuation was carried out on June 30, 2020 by M/s. K.G. 
Traders (Private) Limited, an independent professional valuer, on the basis of present market values which resulted in a 
surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 623.859 million.

Level 2 -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of Company's leasehold land, building, electric 
installations and plant and machinery is as follows:

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

5.1
5.7



January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

-

-

3.5 Use of estimates and judgments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial 
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows:

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets - The amendments 
specify the costs a company should 
include as the cost of fulfilling a contract 
when assessing whether a contract is 
onerous

The IASB issued ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)’ with amendments that address issues that might affect 
financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with 
alternative benchmark rates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2021. The standard is not likely to have any effect on Company’s financial 
statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB, which are yet 
to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose 
of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standard

IAS 12 Income taxes - Amendment regarding 
to clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on leases and 
decommissioning obligations

IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment - The 
amendments clarify the prohibition on 
an entity from deducting from the cost 
of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling 
items produced while bringing that 
asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity 
recognizes the proceeds from selling 
such items, and the cost of producing 
those items, in profit or loss.

3.5.1 Property, plant and equipment - carrying value Rs  5,789.196 million   
Note 5

3.5.2 Investments - carrying value Rs 241.469 million

Note 7

3.5.3 Stock-in-trade and stores and spares - carrying value Rs 1,694.311 million
Note 9

3.5.4 Trade debts and other receivables - carrying value Rs 33.281 million
Note 10

3.5.5 Employee benefits - carrying value Rs 105.093 million
Note 18.1.2

3.5.6 Taxation - carrying value Rs 15.765 million
Note 18.2

Investment in Joint Venture is stated under equity method of accounting, Details of the 
company's investment are stated in Note 7 to the financial statements.

The Company at each balance sheet date reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and 
stores and spares to assess any diminution in their respective carrying values. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and 
spares with a corresponding effect on the profit and loss account of those future years.

The Company reviews its doubtful trade debts and other receivables at each balance sheet 
date to assess the adequacy of provision there against (if any). In particular, judgment is 
required in the estimation of the amount and future recoveries & cash flows when determining 
the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan - staff gratuity are determined through actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of 
these benefits, such estimates are subject to uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to 
carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in note 18 to these financial statements.

The liability related to compensated absences is determined by the management based on 
entitlement of absences of employees.

In making estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account 
the applicable tax laws. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all unused tax losses and available 
credits to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable temporary differences and taxable 
profits will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant 
judgment is exercised to determine the amount of deferred tax asset to be recognized.

The Company’s management reviews the rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives used in 
the calculation of depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment and the value of the 
assets for possible impairment at each financial year end. Further, the Company estimates 
revalued amounts and useful lives of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and 
coating sheds based on the periodic valuations carried out by independent professional valuer. 
Any change in estimate in future might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, 
impairment, surplus on revaluation and annual transfer of incremental depreciation from surplus 
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account to unappropriated profit together with 
any tax effect. The effect of change in revision in useful life as well as revaluation has 
been disclosed in Note 5.
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5.1.1

30 June 30 June
5.2 Allocation of depreciation 2022 2021

Re-stated

Cost of revenue from contract with customers 26.1 34,154         32,265             
Administrative expenses 28 680              656                  

34,834         32,922             

5.3 Revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment

5.4 Fair Value Hierarchy

Levels of fair value are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note --------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------------------

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,080,905    -               1,080,905        
Building - factory -              1,765,309    -               1,765,309        
Plant and machinery -              2,797,507    -               2,797,507        
Coating sheds - owned -              66,205         -               66,205             
Vehicles -              2,651           -               2,651               
Others -              13,358         -               13,358             
As at June 30, 2022 -              5,725,934    -               5,725,934        

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,064,075    -               1,064,075        
Building - factory -              1,608,591    -               1,608,591        
Plant and machinery -              2,798,422    -               2,798,422        
Coating sheds - owned -              63,506         -               63,506             
Vehicles -              3,313           -               3,313               
Others -              14,890         -               14,890             
As at June 30, 2021 -              5,552,797    -               5,552,797        

During the year company has reclassified investment into property plant and equipment consequent upon withdrawl of 
investment (Note. 7.2). The corresponding depreciation on assets transferred has also been accounted for 2018 to 
2021 in order to record assets at their respective fair value.

Management is planning to make an assesment of revaluation of its assets in the subsequent period 2023, so that 
current valuation assigned would be updated

The forced sale value of plant and machinery as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 1,960 million.

The forced sale value of land and building as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 2,313 million. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

The Company carries its leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds at revalued amounts 
under IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. The latest valuation was carried out on June 30, 2020 by M/s. K.G. 
Traders (Private) Limited, an independent professional valuer, on the basis of present market values which resulted in a 
surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 623.859 million.

Level 2 -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of Company's leasehold land, building, electric 
installations and plant and machinery is as follows:

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).



Revaluation surplus

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Investment

4.3 Stores and spares 

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less 
provision for impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on 
management's estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the 
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of Raw and 
Coating materials, labor and applicable production overheads. The comapny reviewes the Net 
realizable value(NRV)  of finished goods based on internal/ external evaluation in order to 
asess any diminution in the respective carrying value of stock of Finished goods in hand. Net 
realizable value(NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business 
less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up 
to the balance sheet date. 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating 
sheds is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the 
estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued 
assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred 
taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE 
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset 
is derecognized. When revalued assets are disposed off, any related amount included in the 
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and 
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and 
installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment 
when they are available for intended use.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as 
well as provisions of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The Company uses equity method of 
accounting where by its proportionate share of income/loss of JV company on the basis of 
latest available financial statement. Investment has been derecognized in the current period 
with retrospective effect ( Note# 7.2).
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5.5

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Land - lease hold 14,997         11,463             
Building - factory 480,770       454,178           
Plant and machinery 481,771       504,910           
Coating sheds 60,264         58,878             

The Leasehold land comprising 422.88 acres of land situated at Nooriabad District Jamshoro, Sindh

5.6 Capital work-in-progress

As at 01 July   Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2021 (Transfers) 2022

Re-stated
-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------

Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         2,500    -               55,007             

60,761         2,500    -               63,261             

As at 01 July  Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2020 (Transfers) 2021

-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------
Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         -        -               52,507             

60,761         -        -               60,761             

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 10,813         6,936               
Less: Current maturity of long term deposits -               -                   

10,813.00    6,936               
Management believe there was no impairment in long term deposit balances.

7. INVESTMENT Note
HPY Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. 7.1 241,469       241,469           
Less: Withdrawn / Reversal during the year (Note 5.2) (241,469)      (241,469)          

-                  0 -                     0 

7.1

Cost

Cost

Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of revalued Assets  in the statement of Financial Position would 
have been as follows

HPY Coating (Private) Limited ("HPY") is a joint venture company incorporated in Pakistan on 17th April 2017, in 
collaboration with Jiangsu PuYuan Steel Pipe Industry Company Limited (“PuYuan”) on the basis of a 55%:45% 
shareholding with Huffaz share 55% (23,100,000 shares @ 10 each) of the issued share capital in HPY against transfer 
of Land & Building therein against transfer and PuYuan share 45% (18,900,000 shares @ 10 each) shares against 
transfer of plant machinery and equipment for setting up the project. The name of the Chief Executive of the company is 
Mr. Hafiz Abdul Majid. The Board of directors of Joint Venture company will comprise 5 (Five) directors, with Huffaz 
nominating 3 (Three) Directors and PuYuan nominating 2 (Two) Directors on the Board. The Purpose of investment is 
setting up a project for providing pipe coating services to its prospective customers (“Project”). 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

7.2

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 98,758         62,077             
         - in transit -               -                   
Spare parts and loose tools 3,854           3,854               

102,612       65,930             
Less: Provision for impairment / obsolescence (7,000)          (5,000)              

95,612         60,930             
8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE
91,165         113,338           

155,443       133,698           
1,194,551    1,250,158        

276,957       252,925           
1,718,116    1,750,120        

Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off (NOTE#9.1) (23,252)        (107,940)          

1,694,864    1,642,180        

9.1

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 33,281         19,990             
Considered doubtful -               662                  

33,281         20,652             
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -               (662)                 

33,281         19,990             

The Company has engaged an Independent Professional Valuator M/S. K.G. Traders Pvt Ltd, for valuation of stock of 
seamless pipes, kept in hand. A valuation report has been submitted by the valuator dated March 24, 2023. 
Management has reviewed the independent valuation and also made its judgment on a prudent/conservative basis in 
order to a certain the likely recoverable values. On the basis of its judgment, an impairment / Diminution in value of 
stock written of in the year was Rs 23,252 (2021: Rs 107,940).

Raw material - in hand
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Rejection / scrap material

During the period 2017 to 2022 over 5 years period actual operating activities have not been carried out. The 
company was faced with the difficulties in transfer of legal title of land and coating sheds in the name of HPY 
Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. Plant and equipment of the other joint venture partner was also not installed to date. Equity 
share capital to both joint venture partners was also not issued as was envisaged in the joint venture 
agreement. In view of these circumstances, the Directors and shareholders of the company have decided to 
derecognized/ withdrawl from investment in the joint venture company. Consiquently, investment have been 
derecognized retrosepectively form the year 2018 and corrospondingly, property plant and equipment have 
been recognized in the year at the respective fair values as of June 30, 2022. The latest unaudited available 
financial statements of the Company was prepared upto the year 2021. On this basis a provision for loss  was 
also recognized in the previous periods representing 55% of the loss as per unaudited financial statement. The 
above investment was categorized under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification in the previous year. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------



Revaluation surplus

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Investment

4.3 Stores and spares 

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less 
provision for impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on 
management's estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the 
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of Raw and 
Coating materials, labor and applicable production overheads. The comapny reviewes the Net 
realizable value(NRV)  of finished goods based on internal/ external evaluation in order to 
asess any diminution in the respective carrying value of stock of Finished goods in hand. Net 
realizable value(NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business 
less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up 
to the balance sheet date. 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating 
sheds is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the 
estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued 
assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred 
taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE 
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset 
is derecognized. When revalued assets are disposed off, any related amount included in the 
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and 
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and 
installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment 
when they are available for intended use.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as 
well as provisions of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The Company uses equity method of 
accounting where by its proportionate share of income/loss of JV company on the basis of 
latest available financial statement. Investment has been derecognized in the current period 
with retrospective effect ( Note# 7.2).
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

4.7 Compensated absences

4.8 Trade and other payables

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings

4.10 Revenue recognition

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less 
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective markup rate method.

Income from sale of seamless pipe/Coating is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, the company's performance obligation is complete as 
soon as goods are delivered. Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 60/90-180 days 
period extended on a case to case basis. The Company considers whether there are other 
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the 
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. The credit is allowed to costumers 
generally is a 60/90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis. Receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience 
over past years as well as any subsequent recoveries are considered for computing 
expected credit losses using a 'simplified approach'.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the 
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive 
income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and 
current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The most recent valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2021. Details of the scheme are given in note 18.1 of 
these financial statements.

The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period 
in which employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated 
absences.

5.5

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Land - lease hold 14,997         11,463             
Building - factory 480,770       454,178           
Plant and machinery 481,771       504,910           
Coating sheds 60,264         58,878             

The Leasehold land comprising 422.88 acres of land situated at Nooriabad District Jamshoro, Sindh

5.6 Capital work-in-progress

As at 01 July   Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2021 (Transfers) 2022

Re-stated
-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------

Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         2,500    -               55,007             

60,761         2,500    -               63,261             

As at 01 July  Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2020 (Transfers) 2021

-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------
Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         -        -               52,507             

60,761         -        -               60,761             

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 10,813         6,936               
Less: Current maturity of long term deposits -               -                   

10,813.00    6,936               
Management believe there was no impairment in long term deposit balances.

7. INVESTMENT Note
HPY Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. 7.1 241,469       241,469           
Less: Withdrawn / Reversal during the year (Note 5.2) (241,469)      (241,469)          

-                  0 -                     0 

7.1

Cost

Cost

Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of revalued Assets  in the statement of Financial Position would 
have been as follows

HPY Coating (Private) Limited ("HPY") is a joint venture company incorporated in Pakistan on 17th April 2017, in 
collaboration with Jiangsu PuYuan Steel Pipe Industry Company Limited (“PuYuan”) on the basis of a 55%:45% 
shareholding with Huffaz share 55% (23,100,000 shares @ 10 each) of the issued share capital in HPY against transfer 
of Land & Building therein against transfer and PuYuan share 45% (18,900,000 shares @ 10 each) shares against 
transfer of plant machinery and equipment for setting up the project. The name of the Chief Executive of the company is 
Mr. Hafiz Abdul Majid. The Board of directors of Joint Venture company will comprise 5 (Five) directors, with Huffaz 
nominating 3 (Three) Directors and PuYuan nominating 2 (Two) Directors on the Board. The Purpose of investment is 
setting up a project for providing pipe coating services to its prospective customers (“Project”). 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

7.2

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 98,758         62,077             
         - in transit -               -                   
Spare parts and loose tools 3,854           3,854               

102,612       65,930             
Less: Provision for impairment / obsolescence (7,000)          (5,000)              

95,612         60,930             
8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE
91,165         113,338           

155,443       133,698           
1,194,551    1,250,158        

276,957       252,925           
1,718,116    1,750,120        

Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off (NOTE#9.1) (23,252)        (107,940)          

1,694,864    1,642,180        

9.1

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 33,281         19,990             
Considered doubtful -               662                  

33,281         20,652             
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -               (662)                 

33,281         19,990             

The Company has engaged an Independent Professional Valuator M/S. K.G. Traders Pvt Ltd, for valuation of stock of 
seamless pipes, kept in hand. A valuation report has been submitted by the valuator dated March 24, 2023. 
Management has reviewed the independent valuation and also made its judgment on a prudent/conservative basis in 
order to a certain the likely recoverable values. On the basis of its judgment, an impairment / Diminution in value of 
stock written of in the year was Rs 23,252 (2021: Rs 107,940).

Raw material - in hand
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Rejection / scrap material

During the period 2017 to 2022 over 5 years period actual operating activities have not been carried out. The 
company was faced with the difficulties in transfer of legal title of land and coating sheds in the name of HPY 
Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. Plant and equipment of the other joint venture partner was also not installed to date. Equity 
share capital to both joint venture partners was also not issued as was envisaged in the joint venture 
agreement. In view of these circumstances, the Directors and shareholders of the company have decided to 
derecognized/ withdrawl from investment in the joint venture company. Consiquently, investment have been 
derecognized retrosepectively form the year 2018 and corrospondingly, property plant and equipment have 
been recognized in the year at the respective fair values as of June 30, 2022. The latest unaudited available 
financial statements of the Company was prepared upto the year 2021. On this basis a provision for loss  was 
also recognized in the previous periods representing 55% of the loss as per unaudited financial statement. The 
above investment was categorized under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification in the previous year. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

10.1 Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis

10.2

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------

Less than 90 days 33,281        -               19,990         -                   
91 to 180 days old -              -               -               -                   
181 to 365 days old -              -               -               -                   
More than one year - Direct Parties -               662              662                  

33,281        -               20,652         662                  

10.3

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 14,166         6,910               
Advances to employees for expenses 8,589           12,695             
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 9,044           7,767               

31,799         27,372             

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently 
upon supply  of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances would be settled down with 
employees  by way of deduction from their Full & Final settlement, whenever will be paid.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits 12.1 7,600           11,240             
Short term deposits/Advance with HPY Coating 12.2 -               20,828             
Add: accrued mark up -               5,623

-               26,451
Less: Expected Credit Loss(ECL) -               (6,090)              

-               20,361             
7,600           31,601             

12.1 This represents deposits held by Customers of the Company in accordance with the supply agreement 
entered for supply of Company's product

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Trade deposits - considered good 9,106           15,364             
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts 1,506           2,406               

7,600           12,958             

12.2

12.3

2022 2021
The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:

This includes deposit of parts and tools Rs. 20,361 thousand and payment of priliminary and other expenses Rs. 467
thousand on incorporation of the joint venture company HPY Coating Pvt Ltd. The tools have been deposited and
payment of expenses were made as per the joint venture agreement. Interest Is provided on outstanding balance at
KIBOR as provided under section 5(4) of companies (Investment in Associated companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017. Expected credit loss has also been provided due to non operation in the investee company. As the
joint venture company has not yet commenced its operations as given in note 7.2. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Trade debtos include amount due from associate Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.Nil). Maximum amount due from associates at any 
time during the year was Rs.Nil.

During the year under review, The tools deposited as above have been returned to the company upon the reversal of 
transaction about the joint venture company(note 7.2).



Revaluation surplus

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Investment

4.3 Stores and spares 

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less 
provision for impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on 
management's estimate regarding their future usability.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the 
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of Raw and 
Coating materials, labor and applicable production overheads. The comapny reviewes the Net 
realizable value(NRV)  of finished goods based on internal/ external evaluation in order to 
asess any diminution in the respective carrying value of stock of Finished goods in hand. Net 
realizable value(NRV) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business 
less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up 
to the balance sheet date. 

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating 
sheds is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the 
estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued 
assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred 
taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on DE 
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year the asset 
is derecognized. When revalued assets are disposed off, any related amount included in the 
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and 
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and 
installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment 
when they are available for intended use.

Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as 
well as provisions of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The Company uses equity method of 
accounting where by its proportionate share of income/loss of JV company on the basis of 
latest available financial statement. Investment has been derecognized in the current period 
with retrospective effect ( Note# 7.2).
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

4.7 Compensated absences

4.8 Trade and other payables

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings

4.10 Revenue recognition

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less 
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective markup rate method.

Income from sale of seamless pipe/Coating is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, the company's performance obligation is complete as 
soon as goods are delivered. Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 60/90-180 days 
period extended on a case to case basis. The Company considers whether there are other 
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the 
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. The credit is allowed to costumers 
generally is a 60/90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis. Receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience 
over past years as well as any subsequent recoveries are considered for computing 
expected credit losses using a 'simplified approach'.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the 
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive 
income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and 
current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The most recent valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2021. Details of the scheme are given in note 18.1 of 
these financial statements.

The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period 
in which employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated 
absences.

4.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.12 Borrowing costs

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from 
assessment framed / finalized (if any) during the year.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and their tax base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner 
of the realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also 
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 
the effective markup rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank 
balances. Short-term borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

7.2

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 98,758         62,077             
         - in transit -               -                   
Spare parts and loose tools 3,854           3,854               

102,612       65,930             
Less: Provision for impairment / obsolescence (7,000)          (5,000)              

95,612         60,930             
8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE
91,165         113,338           

155,443       133,698           
1,194,551    1,250,158        

276,957       252,925           
1,718,116    1,750,120        

Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off (NOTE#9.1) (23,252)        (107,940)          

1,694,864    1,642,180        

9.1

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 33,281         19,990             
Considered doubtful -               662                  

33,281         20,652             
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -               (662)                 

33,281         19,990             

The Company has engaged an Independent Professional Valuator M/S. K.G. Traders Pvt Ltd, for valuation of stock of 
seamless pipes, kept in hand. A valuation report has been submitted by the valuator dated March 24, 2023. 
Management has reviewed the independent valuation and also made its judgment on a prudent/conservative basis in 
order to a certain the likely recoverable values. On the basis of its judgment, an impairment / Diminution in value of 
stock written of in the year was Rs 23,252 (2021: Rs 107,940).

Raw material - in hand
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Rejection / scrap material

During the period 2017 to 2022 over 5 years period actual operating activities have not been carried out. The 
company was faced with the difficulties in transfer of legal title of land and coating sheds in the name of HPY 
Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. Plant and equipment of the other joint venture partner was also not installed to date. Equity 
share capital to both joint venture partners was also not issued as was envisaged in the joint venture 
agreement. In view of these circumstances, the Directors and shareholders of the company have decided to 
derecognized/ withdrawl from investment in the joint venture company. Consiquently, investment have been 
derecognized retrosepectively form the year 2018 and corrospondingly, property plant and equipment have 
been recognized in the year at the respective fair values as of June 30, 2022. The latest unaudited available 
financial statements of the Company was prepared upto the year 2021. On this basis a provision for loss  was 
also recognized in the previous periods representing 55% of the loss as per unaudited financial statement. The 
above investment was categorized under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification in the previous year. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

10.1 Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis

10.2

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------

Less than 90 days 33,281        -               19,990         -                   
91 to 180 days old -              -               -               -                   
181 to 365 days old -              -               -               -                   
More than one year - Direct Parties -               662              662                  

33,281        -               20,652         662                  

10.3

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 14,166         6,910               
Advances to employees for expenses 8,589           12,695             
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 9,044           7,767               

31,799         27,372             

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently 
upon supply  of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances would be settled down with 
employees  by way of deduction from their Full & Final settlement, whenever will be paid.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits 12.1 7,600           11,240             
Short term deposits/Advance with HPY Coating 12.2 -               20,828             
Add: accrued mark up -               5,623

-               26,451
Less: Expected Credit Loss(ECL) -               (6,090)              

-               20,361             
7,600           31,601             

12.1 This represents deposits held by Customers of the Company in accordance with the supply agreement 
entered for supply of Company's product

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Trade deposits - considered good 9,106           15,364             
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts 1,506           2,406               

7,600           12,958             

12.2

12.3

2022 2021
The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:

This includes deposit of parts and tools Rs. 20,361 thousand and payment of priliminary and other expenses Rs. 467
thousand on incorporation of the joint venture company HPY Coating Pvt Ltd. The tools have been deposited and
payment of expenses were made as per the joint venture agreement. Interest Is provided on outstanding balance at
KIBOR as provided under section 5(4) of companies (Investment in Associated companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017. Expected credit loss has also been provided due to non operation in the investee company. As the
joint venture company has not yet commenced its operations as given in note 7.2. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Trade debtos include amount due from associate Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.Nil). Maximum amount due from associates at any 
time during the year was Rs.Nil.

During the year under review, The tools deposited as above have been returned to the company upon the reversal of 
transaction about the joint venture company(note 7.2).

30 June 30 June
2022 30 June

Re-stated
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax Refundable 22,723         16,748             
Letter of credit 1,169           1,403               
Margin against guarantee 11,599         27,177             

35,491         45,328             

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION

8,754           2,982               
8,341           3,373

17,095         6,355               

Reversal of provision for the prior year 350              3,944
(1,680)          (1,545)              
15,765         8,754               

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

36                175                  
With banks in current accounts 13,594         27,325             
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21                21                    

13,651         27,521             
Less: Book Over draft (1,203)          (5,113)              

12,448         22,408             
16. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated

Authorized:

70,000,000   70,000,000   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000       700,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278   12,200,278   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 122,004       122,004           

38,906,565   38,906,565   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each issued as bonus shares 389,066       389,066           

4,377,460     4,377,460     Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775         43,775             

55,484,303   55,484,303   554,844       554,844           

16.1

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

(Number of shares)

Provision for taxation

Cash in hand

Tax receivable as at 1 July 
Tax paid during the year

The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2021: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the foreign 
sponsors of the Company.
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

4.6 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

4.7 Compensated absences

4.8 Trade and other payables

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings

4.10 Revenue recognition

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less 
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective markup rate method.

Income from sale of seamless pipe/Coating is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, the company's performance obligation is complete as 
soon as goods are delivered. Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 60/90-180 days 
period extended on a case to case basis. The Company considers whether there are other 
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the 
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. The credit is allowed to costumers 
generally is a 60/90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis. Receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience 
over past years as well as any subsequent recoveries are considered for computing 
expected credit losses using a 'simplified approach'.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the 
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation 
carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive 
income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest expense and 
current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The most recent valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2021. Details of the scheme are given in note 18.1 of 
these financial statements.

The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period 
in which employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated 
absences.

4.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.12 Borrowing costs

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from 
assessment framed / finalized (if any) during the year.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and their tax base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner 
of the realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also 
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 
the effective markup rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank 
balances. Short-term borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

4.16.2 Non-derivative financial assets

4.16.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

4.16.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the statement of profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand, balances with banks and borrowings availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to 
base the calculation of expected credit loss. (Note 4.5)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the 
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial 
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset.

10.1 Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis

10.2

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------

Less than 90 days 33,281        -               19,990         -                   
91 to 180 days old -              -               -               -                   
181 to 365 days old -              -               -               -                   
More than one year - Direct Parties -               662              662                  

33,281        -               20,652         662                  

10.3

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 14,166         6,910               
Advances to employees for expenses 8,589           12,695             
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 9,044           7,767               

31,799         27,372             

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently 
upon supply  of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances would be settled down with 
employees  by way of deduction from their Full & Final settlement, whenever will be paid.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits 12.1 7,600           11,240             
Short term deposits/Advance with HPY Coating 12.2 -               20,828             
Add: accrued mark up -               5,623

-               26,451
Less: Expected Credit Loss(ECL) -               (6,090)              

-               20,361             
7,600           31,601             

12.1 This represents deposits held by Customers of the Company in accordance with the supply agreement 
entered for supply of Company's product

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Trade deposits - considered good 9,106           15,364             
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts 1,506           2,406               

7,600           12,958             

12.2

12.3

2022 2021
The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:

This includes deposit of parts and tools Rs. 20,361 thousand and payment of priliminary and other expenses Rs. 467
thousand on incorporation of the joint venture company HPY Coating Pvt Ltd. The tools have been deposited and
payment of expenses were made as per the joint venture agreement. Interest Is provided on outstanding balance at
KIBOR as provided under section 5(4) of companies (Investment in Associated companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017. Expected credit loss has also been provided due to non operation in the investee company. As the
joint venture company has not yet commenced its operations as given in note 7.2. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Trade debtos include amount due from associate Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.Nil). Maximum amount due from associates at any 
time during the year was Rs.Nil.

During the year under review, The tools deposited as above have been returned to the company upon the reversal of 
transaction about the joint venture company(note 7.2).

30 June 30 June
2022 30 June

Re-stated
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax Refundable 22,723         16,748             
Letter of credit 1,169           1,403               
Margin against guarantee 11,599         27,177             

35,491         45,328             

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION

8,754           2,982               
8,341           3,373

17,095         6,355               

Reversal of provision for the prior year 350              3,944
(1,680)          (1,545)              
15,765         8,754               

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

36                175                  
With banks in current accounts 13,594         27,325             
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21                21                    

13,651         27,521             
Less: Book Over draft (1,203)          (5,113)              

12,448         22,408             
16. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated

Authorized:

70,000,000   70,000,000   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000       700,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278   12,200,278   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 122,004       122,004           

38,906,565   38,906,565   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each issued as bonus shares 389,066       389,066           

4,377,460     4,377,460     Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775         43,775             

55,484,303   55,484,303   554,844       554,844           

16.1

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

(Number of shares)

Provision for taxation

Cash in hand

Tax receivable as at 1 July 
Tax paid during the year

The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2021: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the foreign 
sponsors of the Company.
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4.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.12 Borrowing costs

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from 
assessment framed / finalized (if any) during the year.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and their tax base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner 
of the realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also 
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 
the effective markup rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank 
balances. Short-term borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 
balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

4.16.2 Non-derivative financial assets

4.16.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

4.16.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the statement of profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand, balances with banks and borrowings availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to 
base the calculation of expected credit loss. (Note 4.5)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the 
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial 
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset.

4.16.3 Financial liabilities

4.16.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

4.16.3.2 Trade and other payables

4.17

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up 
bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognizes the financial 
liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability 
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized 
cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption 
value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade 
receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 
recognized in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).
 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever 
considered necessary, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
(subsequent collection) and the general economic conditions of the country.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the 
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60/90-180 
days (extended in case to case basis) past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.

30 June 30 June
2022 30 June

Re-stated
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax Refundable 22,723         16,748             
Letter of credit 1,169           1,403               
Margin against guarantee 11,599         27,177             

35,491         45,328             

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION

8,754           2,982               
8,341           3,373

17,095         6,355               

Reversal of provision for the prior year 350              3,944
(1,680)          (1,545)              
15,765         8,754               

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

36                175                  
With banks in current accounts 13,594         27,325             
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21                21                    

13,651         27,521             
Less: Book Over draft (1,203)          (5,113)              

12,448         22,408             
16. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated

Authorized:

70,000,000   70,000,000   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000       700,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278   12,200,278   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 122,004       122,004           

38,906,565   38,906,565   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each issued as bonus shares 389,066       389,066           

4,377,460     4,377,460     Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775         43,775             

55,484,303   55,484,303   554,844       554,844           

16.1

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

(Number of shares)

Provision for taxation

Cash in hand

Tax receivable as at 1 July 
Tax paid during the year

The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2021: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the foreign 
sponsors of the Company.

2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)-------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity  19.1 105,094       98,224             
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid -                   

105,094       98,224             
Deferred taxation - net  19.2 1,117,558    1,143,954        

1,222,652    1,242,178        
Interest on long term loan 19.3 360,839       -                   

1,583,491    1,242,178        

19.1 Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined benefit 
obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 18.1.3 95,786         88,138             
Unrecognized actuarial gain / (loss) -               -                   
Benefits due but not paid during the year 9,308           10,086             

105,094       98,224             
19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,137         88,562             
Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           -                   
Interest cost on defined benefits/obligation 8,814           7,334               
Benefits due but not paid during the year -               (4,570)              
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (8,150)              
Benefits paid during the year -               -                   
Gain ands losses arising on plan settlement 
Remesaurements:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographis assumptions -               
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 122              57                    
Expreience adjustments (8,470)          (8,207)              
Obligation as at 30 June 2020 95,786         88,138             

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           
Interest cost -               -                   
Net actuarial loss / (gain) 8,814           7,334               

15,996         12,296             

19.1.5

Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate for year end valuation 13.25% 10.00%
Salary increase rate N/A 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

19.1.6 Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Number of employees covered by the scheme 100              90

Actuarial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method 
and the following significant assumptions have been used

 Set back 1 
Year 

 Set back 1 
Year 
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4.16 Financial instruments

4.16.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

4.16.2 Non-derivative financial assets

4.16.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

4.16.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
the statement of profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand, balances with banks and borrowings availed by the Company, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to 
base the calculation of expected credit loss. (Note 4.5)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the 
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial 
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the 
transferred asset.

4.16.3 Financial liabilities

4.16.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

4.16.3.2 Trade and other payables

4.17

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up 
bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognizes the financial 
liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability 
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized 
cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption 
value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade 
receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 
recognized in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).
 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever 
considered necessary, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
(subsequent collection) and the general economic conditions of the country.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the 
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60/90-180 
days (extended in case to case basis) past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Finacial Libilities 

4.18 Initial recognition and measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings (if any) are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings (if any). 

DE recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the DE recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in 
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, sponsor loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent 
measurement 

2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)-------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity  19.1 105,094       98,224             
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid -                   

105,094       98,224             
Deferred taxation - net  19.2 1,117,558    1,143,954        

1,222,652    1,242,178        
Interest on long term loan 19.3 360,839       -                   

1,583,491    1,242,178        

19.1 Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined benefit 
obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 18.1.3 95,786         88,138             
Unrecognized actuarial gain / (loss) -               -                   
Benefits due but not paid during the year 9,308           10,086             

105,094       98,224             
19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,137         88,562             
Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           -                   
Interest cost on defined benefits/obligation 8,814           7,334               
Benefits due but not paid during the year -               (4,570)              
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (8,150)              
Benefits paid during the year -               -                   
Gain ands losses arising on plan settlement 
Remesaurements:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographis assumptions -               
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 122              57                    
Expreience adjustments (8,470)          (8,207)              
Obligation as at 30 June 2020 95,786         88,138             

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           
Interest cost -               -                   
Net actuarial loss / (gain) 8,814           7,334               

15,996         12,296             

19.1.5

Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate for year end valuation 13.25% 10.00%
Salary increase rate N/A 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

19.1.6 Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Number of employees covered by the scheme 100              90

Actuarial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method 
and the following significant assumptions have been used

 Set back 1 
Year 

 Set back 1 
Year 

19.1.7 Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Discount rate 1% (5,502)          (5,502)
Salary growth rate 1% 6,315           6,315

19.1.8 The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:
Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is 
measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.
Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. 
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
 benefit obligation.

19.1.9 The movement of the liability can go either way.
19.1.10 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021/2022 is 5 years.

The expected gratuity expense for the next one year from July 1, 2022 would be 15,273 thousand 
(July 1, 2021 to Rs. 11,510 thousand )

19.2 Deferred taxation - net
2022 2021

Re-stated
------(Rupees in '000)------

188,169       203,485           
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,031,155    1,039,224        

274              342                  
1,219,598    1,243,051        

(28,048)        (26,121)            
Provision for compensated absences (4,737)          (4,300)              
Others (67,226)        (67,226)            
Provision for store & Spare (2,030)          (1,450)              

(102,041)      (99,097)            

1,117,827    1,143,954        

19.3

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32,912         31,322             
77,697         84,375             
38,385         35,499             

Workers' profit participation fund 20.1 -               427,599           
15,337         15,337             

696              696                  
-               4,334               

20.2 97,840         52,658             
16,334         14,829             

Gratuity due but not yet paid -               -                   
709              699                  

279,910       667,349           

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:

 Increase in 
assumption 

Change in 
assumption Decrease in 

assumption

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

 Increase / (decrease) in 
defined benefit obligation due 

to 

Provision for compensated absences

Others

Finance lease arrangement / DM financing

Bills payable

Tax deducted at source
Accrued liabilities
Trade creditors

This represent brought forward outstanding liability of interest on outstanding balance in respect of WPPF reclassified 
into deffered liability. In accordance with an agreement with the workers representative (union)- (note 18), upon payment 
of the entire amount of liability of WPPF the interest amount may be considered as cancelled or waived in the future.

Defined benefit plan's obligation

Workers' welfare fund
Unclaimed dividend

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Advances from customers
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4.16.3 Financial liabilities

4.16.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

4.16.3.2 Trade and other payables

4.17

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up 
bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognizes the financial 
liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability 
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized 
cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption 
value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if 
any, and subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade 
receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 
recognized in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).
 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever 
considered necessary, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
(subsequent collection) and the general economic conditions of the country.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the 
internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60/90-180 
days (extended in case to case basis) past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Finacial Libilities 

4.18 Initial recognition and measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings (if any) are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings (if any). 

DE recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the DE recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in 
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, sponsor loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent 
measurement 

4.19 Segment reporting

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. 
Management monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes 
and coating income) separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource 
allocation and performance assessment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which these are approved by the members and board of directors.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)-------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity  19.1 105,094       98,224             
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid -                   

105,094       98,224             
Deferred taxation - net  19.2 1,117,558    1,143,954        

1,222,652    1,242,178        
Interest on long term loan 19.3 360,839       -                   

1,583,491    1,242,178        

19.1 Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined benefit 
obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 18.1.3 95,786         88,138             
Unrecognized actuarial gain / (loss) -               -                   
Benefits due but not paid during the year 9,308           10,086             

105,094       98,224             
19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,137         88,562             
Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           -                   
Interest cost on defined benefits/obligation 8,814           7,334               
Benefits due but not paid during the year -               (4,570)              
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (8,150)              
Benefits paid during the year -               -                   
Gain ands losses arising on plan settlement 
Remesaurements:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographis assumptions -               
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 122              57                    
Expreience adjustments (8,470)          (8,207)              
Obligation as at 30 June 2020 95,786         88,138             

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           
Interest cost -               -                   
Net actuarial loss / (gain) 8,814           7,334               

15,996         12,296             

19.1.5

Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate for year end valuation 13.25% 10.00%
Salary increase rate N/A 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

19.1.6 Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Number of employees covered by the scheme 100              90

Actuarial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method 
and the following significant assumptions have been used

 Set back 1 
Year 

 Set back 1 
Year 

19.1.7 Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Discount rate 1% (5,502)          (5,502)
Salary growth rate 1% 6,315           6,315

19.1.8 The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:
Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is 
measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.
Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. 
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
 benefit obligation.

19.1.9 The movement of the liability can go either way.
19.1.10 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021/2022 is 5 years.

The expected gratuity expense for the next one year from July 1, 2022 would be 15,273 thousand 
(July 1, 2021 to Rs. 11,510 thousand )

19.2 Deferred taxation - net
2022 2021

Re-stated
------(Rupees in '000)------

188,169       203,485           
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,031,155    1,039,224        

274              342                  
1,219,598    1,243,051        

(28,048)        (26,121)            
Provision for compensated absences (4,737)          (4,300)              
Others (67,226)        (67,226)            
Provision for store & Spare (2,030)          (1,450)              

(102,041)      (99,097)            

1,117,827    1,143,954        

19.3

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32,912         31,322             
77,697         84,375             
38,385         35,499             

Workers' profit participation fund 20.1 -               427,599           
15,337         15,337             

696              696                  
-               4,334               

20.2 97,840         52,658             
16,334         14,829             

Gratuity due but not yet paid -               -                   
709              699                  

279,910       667,349           

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:

 Increase in 
assumption 

Change in 
assumption Decrease in 

assumption

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

 Increase / (decrease) in 
defined benefit obligation due 

to 

Provision for compensated absences

Others

Finance lease arrangement / DM financing

Bills payable

Tax deducted at source
Accrued liabilities
Trade creditors

This represent brought forward outstanding liability of interest on outstanding balance in respect of WPPF reclassified 
into deffered liability. In accordance with an agreement with the workers representative (union)- (note 18), upon payment 
of the entire amount of liability of WPPF the interest amount may be considered as cancelled or waived in the future.

Defined benefit plan's obligation

Workers' welfare fund
Unclaimed dividend

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Advances from customers

20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

427,599       391,425           
-               -                   

Accrued Interest 31 2                  -               36,174             
427,599       427,599           

-               -                   
Reclassified into long term loan 18 (66,760)        -                   

Defered liability 19 (360,839)      -                   
Balance at the end of the year -               427,599           

Reclassificatin in the year have been ignored for cash flow statement purposes.

20.2

2022 2021
21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS/DIRECTORS ADVANCES - Unsecured Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

471,508       333,092           

471,508       333,092           

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Contingencies

22.1.1

22.1.2 Tax Contigencies

Custom Duty/Sales Tax

22.1.3

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1

22.2.2

The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) has levied Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) in 
accordance with GIDC Act 2015 and has sent a bill of Rs 90 million for the levy of GIDC cess of previous periods up to 
and including the year 2021. The company has challenged this bill and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
contending the said levy was not legal as per the para 37 & 42 of the order passed by the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan and obtain a stay order against the payment of aforesaid bill of SSGC. The legal advisor of the company has 
expressed his legal opinion stating that, the matter is ‘subjudice ’ before the court and there would not be any likelihood 
that claim of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) would be materialized.

The Collector of Custom, Hyderabad issued the show cause notice No 832 dated 17/09/2020 and subsequently filled an 
FIR in this case against some Directors of Huffaz Seamless Pipes Industries Limited in respect of Custom duty & Sales 
Tax covering an amount of Rs. 61.766 million. The Company approached Honorable High Court of Sindh in this regard 
and obtained stay order. The matter is ‘subjudice ’ as the case is proceeded in Honorable High Court of Sindh. Legal 
counsel of the company is optimistic that, there would be no adverse consequences against the Company regarding 
this case and the outcome would be in the favor of the company.

Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rs. 13.129 million  (2021: Rs. 27.177 million) have been furnished in 
favor of various customers. 

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 0.000 million (2021: Rs. 4.333 million).

The facility for opening letters of Credit/Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 
million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million,

Short term sponsors loan

This represents unsecured and interest free advance from sponsors/directors 
repayable on demand.

Creditors and Advances from customers included balances due to associated undertaking Rs 19,164 thousand and Rs 
10,522 thousand respectively. The maximum amounts due at any time during the year were Rs 19,164 thousand and 
Rs 10,522 thousand respectively.

Payments made during the year

Allocation for the period
Balance as at 1 July
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Finacial Libilities 

4.18 Initial recognition and measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings (if any) are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings (if any). 

DE recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the DE recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in 
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, sponsor loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent 
measurement 

4.19 Segment reporting

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. 
Management monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes 
and coating income) separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource 
allocation and performance assessment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which these are approved by the members and board of directors.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

19.1.7 Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Discount rate 1% (5,502)          (5,502)
Salary growth rate 1% 6,315           6,315

19.1.8 The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:
Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is 
measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.
Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. 
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
 benefit obligation.

19.1.9 The movement of the liability can go either way.
19.1.10 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021/2022 is 5 years.

The expected gratuity expense for the next one year from July 1, 2022 would be 15,273 thousand 
(July 1, 2021 to Rs. 11,510 thousand )

19.2 Deferred taxation - net
2022 2021

Re-stated
------(Rupees in '000)------

188,169       203,485           
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,031,155    1,039,224        

274              342                  
1,219,598    1,243,051        

(28,048)        (26,121)            
Provision for compensated absences (4,737)          (4,300)              
Others (67,226)        (67,226)            
Provision for store & Spare (2,030)          (1,450)              

(102,041)      (99,097)            

1,117,827    1,143,954        

19.3

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32,912         31,322             
77,697         84,375             
38,385         35,499             

Workers' profit participation fund 20.1 -               427,599           
15,337         15,337             

696              696                  
-               4,334               

20.2 97,840         52,658             
16,334         14,829             

Gratuity due but not yet paid -               -                   
709              699                  

279,910       667,349           

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:

 Increase in 
assumption 

Change in 
assumption Decrease in 

assumption

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

 Increase / (decrease) in 
defined benefit obligation due 

to 

Provision for compensated absences

Others

Finance lease arrangement / DM financing

Bills payable

Tax deducted at source
Accrued liabilities
Trade creditors

This represent brought forward outstanding liability of interest on outstanding balance in respect of WPPF reclassified 
into deffered liability. In accordance with an agreement with the workers representative (union)- (note 18), upon payment 
of the entire amount of liability of WPPF the interest amount may be considered as cancelled or waived in the future.

Defined benefit plan's obligation

Workers' welfare fund
Unclaimed dividend

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Advances from customers

20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

427,599       391,425           
-               -                   

Accrued Interest 31 2                  -               36,174             
427,599       427,599           

-               -                   
Reclassified into long term loan 18 (66,760)        -                   

Defered liability 19 (360,839)      -                   
Balance at the end of the year -               427,599           

Reclassificatin in the year have been ignored for cash flow statement purposes.

20.2

2022 2021
21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS/DIRECTORS ADVANCES - Unsecured Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

471,508       333,092           

471,508       333,092           

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Contingencies

22.1.1

22.1.2 Tax Contigencies

Custom Duty/Sales Tax

22.1.3

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1

22.2.2

The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) has levied Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) in 
accordance with GIDC Act 2015 and has sent a bill of Rs 90 million for the levy of GIDC cess of previous periods up to 
and including the year 2021. The company has challenged this bill and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
contending the said levy was not legal as per the para 37 & 42 of the order passed by the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan and obtain a stay order against the payment of aforesaid bill of SSGC. The legal advisor of the company has 
expressed his legal opinion stating that, the matter is ‘subjudice ’ before the court and there would not be any likelihood 
that claim of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) would be materialized.

The Collector of Custom, Hyderabad issued the show cause notice No 832 dated 17/09/2020 and subsequently filled an 
FIR in this case against some Directors of Huffaz Seamless Pipes Industries Limited in respect of Custom duty & Sales 
Tax covering an amount of Rs. 61.766 million. The Company approached Honorable High Court of Sindh in this regard 
and obtained stay order. The matter is ‘subjudice ’ as the case is proceeded in Honorable High Court of Sindh. Legal 
counsel of the company is optimistic that, there would be no adverse consequences against the Company regarding 
this case and the outcome would be in the favor of the company.

Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rs. 13.129 million  (2021: Rs. 27.177 million) have been furnished in 
favor of various customers. 

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 0.000 million (2021: Rs. 4.333 million).

The facility for opening letters of Credit/Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 
million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million,

Short term sponsors loan

This represents unsecured and interest free advance from sponsors/directors 
repayable on demand.

Creditors and Advances from customers included balances due to associated undertaking Rs 19,164 thousand and Rs 
10,522 thousand respectively. The maximum amounts due at any time during the year were Rs 19,164 thousand and 
Rs 10,522 thousand respectively.

Payments made during the year

Allocation for the period
Balance as at 1 July

2022 2021
Re-stated

...........(Rupees in ‘000)..........

23. Revenue from contract with customers 2022 2021
Re-stated-------(Rupees in '000)------

Gross Revenue   -Local  157,151       113,779       
Gross Revenue - Export -                   -               

157,151       113,779       
Less   -Sales Tax (22,834)        (16,537)        

134,317       97,243         
23.1 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

23.1.1 Major Product Lines:
Seamless and other pipes 21,509         77,260         
Coating Income 112,808       19,983         

134,317       97,243         
23.1.2 Primary geographical markets:

Sindh 121,086       82,657         
Other provinces 13,231         14,586         

134,317       97,243         

24. COST OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS
Opening stock of finished goods (net) 1,142,218    1,057,841    
Cost of goods manufactured 24.1 266,497       250,979       
prior period correction in depreciation -                   3,284           
Total Goods available for sale 1,408,715    1,312,104    
Closing stock
Finished goods 9 (1,194,551)   (1,250,158)   
Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off 23,252         107,940       

(1,171,299)   (1,142,218)   
Cost of Goods Sold 237,416       169,886       

24.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Opening work in progress 133,698       102,972       
Raw & coating material consumed 24.1.1 122,032       165,277       
Store and spare parts consumed 20,586         15,167         
Gas consumed 11,414         26,685         
Processing expense (outside factory) 3,948           -               
Power, fuel and water 32,218         23,054         
Salaries, wages, and other benefits 24.1.2 73,643         71,490         
Rent, rates and taxes 1,293           7                  
Insurance 14                3                  
Repairs and maintenance 2,974           2,837           
Carriage and cartage 2,526           1,118           
Depreciation 5.2 34,154         32,265         
Others 7,472           9,684           
Closing work in progress (155,443)      (133,698)      

290,529       316,861       
Rejection / scrap material
Opening 252,925       187,044       
Closing (276,957)      (252,925)      

(24,032)        (65,881)        

Cost of Goods Manufactured 266,497       250,979       

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical 
markets and major product
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4.19 Segment reporting

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. 
Management monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes 
and coating income) separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource 
allocation and performance assessment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which these are approved by the members and board of directors.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

5.1.1

30 June 30 June
5.2 Allocation of depreciation 2022 2021

Re-stated

Cost of revenue from contract with customers 26.1 34,154         32,265             
Administrative expenses 28 680              656                  

34,834         32,922             

5.3 Revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment

5.4 Fair Value Hierarchy

Levels of fair value are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note --------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------------------

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,080,905    -               1,080,905        
Building - factory -              1,765,309    -               1,765,309        
Plant and machinery -              2,797,507    -               2,797,507        
Coating sheds - owned -              66,205         -               66,205             
Vehicles -              2,651           -               2,651               
Others -              13,358         -               13,358             
As at June 30, 2022 -              5,725,934    -               5,725,934        

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,064,075    -               1,064,075        
Building - factory -              1,608,591    -               1,608,591        
Plant and machinery -              2,798,422    -               2,798,422        
Coating sheds - owned -              63,506         -               63,506             
Vehicles -              3,313           -               3,313               
Others -              14,890         -               14,890             
As at June 30, 2021 -              5,552,797    -               5,552,797        

During the year company has reclassified investment into property plant and equipment consequent upon withdrawl of 
investment (Note. 7.2). The corresponding depreciation on assets transferred has also been accounted for 2018 to 
2021 in order to record assets at their respective fair value.

Management is planning to make an assesment of revaluation of its assets in the subsequent period 2023, so that 
current valuation assigned would be updated

The forced sale value of plant and machinery as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 1,960 million.

The forced sale value of land and building as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 2,313 million. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

The Company carries its leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds at revalued amounts 
under IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. The latest valuation was carried out on June 30, 2020 by M/s. K.G. 
Traders (Private) Limited, an independent professional valuer, on the basis of present market values which resulted in a 
surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 623.859 million.

Level 2 -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of Company's leasehold land, building, electric 
installations and plant and machinery is as follows:

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

427,599       391,425           
-               -                   

Accrued Interest 31 2                  -               36,174             
427,599       427,599           

-               -                   
Reclassified into long term loan 18 (66,760)        -                   

Defered liability 19 (360,839)      -                   
Balance at the end of the year -               427,599           

Reclassificatin in the year have been ignored for cash flow statement purposes.

20.2

2022 2021
21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS/DIRECTORS ADVANCES - Unsecured Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

471,508       333,092           

471,508       333,092           

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Contingencies

22.1.1

22.1.2 Tax Contigencies

Custom Duty/Sales Tax

22.1.3

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1

22.2.2

The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) has levied Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) in 
accordance with GIDC Act 2015 and has sent a bill of Rs 90 million for the levy of GIDC cess of previous periods up to 
and including the year 2021. The company has challenged this bill and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
contending the said levy was not legal as per the para 37 & 42 of the order passed by the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan and obtain a stay order against the payment of aforesaid bill of SSGC. The legal advisor of the company has 
expressed his legal opinion stating that, the matter is ‘subjudice ’ before the court and there would not be any likelihood 
that claim of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) would be materialized.

The Collector of Custom, Hyderabad issued the show cause notice No 832 dated 17/09/2020 and subsequently filled an 
FIR in this case against some Directors of Huffaz Seamless Pipes Industries Limited in respect of Custom duty & Sales 
Tax covering an amount of Rs. 61.766 million. The Company approached Honorable High Court of Sindh in this regard 
and obtained stay order. The matter is ‘subjudice ’ as the case is proceeded in Honorable High Court of Sindh. Legal 
counsel of the company is optimistic that, there would be no adverse consequences against the Company regarding 
this case and the outcome would be in the favor of the company.

Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rs. 13.129 million  (2021: Rs. 27.177 million) have been furnished in 
favor of various customers. 

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 0.000 million (2021: Rs. 4.333 million).

The facility for opening letters of Credit/Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 
million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million,

Short term sponsors loan

This represents unsecured and interest free advance from sponsors/directors 
repayable on demand.

Creditors and Advances from customers included balances due to associated undertaking Rs 19,164 thousand and Rs 
10,522 thousand respectively. The maximum amounts due at any time during the year were Rs 19,164 thousand and 
Rs 10,522 thousand respectively.

Payments made during the year

Allocation for the period
Balance as at 1 July

23. Revenue from contract with customers 2022 2021
Re-stated-------(Rupees in '000)------

Gross Revenue   -Local  157,151       113,779       
Gross Revenue - Export -                   -               

157,151       113,779       
Less   -Sales Tax (22,834)        (16,537)        

134,317       97,243         
23.1 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

23.1.1 Major Product Lines:
Seamless and other pipes 21,509         77,260         
Coating Income 112,808       19,983         

134,317       97,243         
23.1.2 Primary geographical markets:

Sindh 121,086       82,657         
Other provinces 13,231         14,586         

134,317       97,243         

24. COST OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS
Opening stock of finished goods (net) 1,142,218    1,057,841    
Cost of goods manufactured 24.1 266,497       250,979       
prior period correction in depreciation -                   3,284           
Total Goods available for sale 1,408,715    1,312,104    
Closing stock
Finished goods 9 (1,194,551)   (1,250,158)   
Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off 23,252         107,940       

(1,171,299)   (1,142,218)   
Cost of Goods Sold 237,416       169,886       

24.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Opening work in progress 133,698       102,972       
Raw & coating material consumed 24.1.1 122,032       165,277       
Store and spare parts consumed 20,586         15,167         
Gas consumed 11,414         26,685         
Processing expense (outside factory) 3,948           -               
Power, fuel and water 32,218         23,054         
Salaries, wages, and other benefits 24.1.2 73,643         71,490         
Rent, rates and taxes 1,293           7                  
Insurance 14                3                  
Repairs and maintenance 2,974           2,837           
Carriage and cartage 2,526           1,118           
Depreciation 5.2 34,154         32,265         
Others 7,472           9,684           
Closing work in progress (155,443)      (133,698)      

290,529       316,861       
Rejection / scrap material
Opening 252,925       187,044       
Closing (276,957)      (252,925)      

(24,032)        (65,881)        

Cost of Goods Manufactured 266,497       250,979       

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical 
markets and major product

2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)------

24.1.1 Raw & Coating material consumed

Opening stock 113,338       79,982         
Purchases

Domestic 50,535         -               
Imported 49,324         177,801       

99,859         177,801       
213,197       257,783       

Closing stock (91,165)        (113,338)      
122,032       144,445       

24.1.2

25. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.1 4,029           3,255           
Travelling and conveyance -               20                
Provision for doubtful debts 10 -               662              
Provision for doubtful deposit accounts 12.1 -               2,406           
Miscellaneous -               854              

4,029           7,197           

26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 26.1 28,058         12,967         
Travelling and conveyance 1,366           1,152           
Legal and professional charges 508              282              
Fees and subscription 5,317           5,724           
Telephone, telex and postage 1,408           1,947           
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,248           1,035           
Auditors' remuneration 26.3 1,160           1,120           
Printing and stationary 92                475              
Depreciation 5.2 680              656              
Utilities 626              576              
Repairs and maintenance 2,818           514              
Advertisement 103              25                
Entertainment 1,139           219              
Others 7                  318              

44,531         27,010         

26.2 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,000           1,000           
Out of pocket expenses 160              120              

1,160           1,120           

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.12,468 thousand (2021: Rs.9,200 thousand) in respect of 
staff retirement benefits.

25.1

26.1

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 452.764 thousand (2021: Rs.615 thousand ) in respect 
of staff retirement benefits.

Salaries and other benefits includes Rs. 3,075 thousand (2021: Rs. 2,459 thousand) in respect of staff 
retirement benefits.

5.1
5.7
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5.1.1

30 June 30 June
5.2 Allocation of depreciation 2022 2021

Re-stated

Cost of revenue from contract with customers 26.1 34,154         32,265             
Administrative expenses 28 680              656                  

34,834         32,922             

5.3 Revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment

5.4 Fair Value Hierarchy

Levels of fair value are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note --------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------------------

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,080,905    -               1,080,905        
Building - factory -              1,765,309    -               1,765,309        
Plant and machinery -              2,797,507    -               2,797,507        
Coating sheds - owned -              66,205         -               66,205             
Vehicles -              2,651           -               2,651               
Others -              13,358         -               13,358             
As at June 30, 2022 -              5,725,934    -               5,725,934        

Land - leasehold 5.5 -              1,064,075    -               1,064,075        
Building - factory -              1,608,591    -               1,608,591        
Plant and machinery -              2,798,422    -               2,798,422        
Coating sheds - owned -              63,506         -               63,506             
Vehicles -              3,313           -               3,313               
Others -              14,890         -               14,890             
As at June 30, 2021 -              5,552,797    -               5,552,797        

During the year company has reclassified investment into property plant and equipment consequent upon withdrawl of 
investment (Note. 7.2). The corresponding depreciation on assets transferred has also been accounted for 2018 to 
2021 in order to record assets at their respective fair value.

Management is planning to make an assesment of revaluation of its assets in the subsequent period 2023, so that 
current valuation assigned would be updated

The forced sale value of plant and machinery as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 1,960 million.

The forced sale value of land and building as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 2,313 million. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

The Company carries its leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds at revalued amounts 
under IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. The latest valuation was carried out on June 30, 2020 by M/s. K.G. 
Traders (Private) Limited, an independent professional valuer, on the basis of present market values which resulted in a 
surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 623.859 million.

Level 2 -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of Company's leasehold land, building, electric 
installations and plant and machinery is as follows:

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)------

24.1.1 Raw & Coating material consumed

Opening stock 113,338       79,982         
Purchases

Domestic 50,535         -               
Imported 49,324         177,801       

99,859         177,801       
213,197       257,783       

Closing stock (91,165)        (113,338)      
122,032       144,445       

24.1.2

25. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.1 4,029           3,255           
Travelling and conveyance -               20                
Provision for doubtful debts 10 -               662              
Provision for doubtful deposit accounts 12.1 -               2,406           
Miscellaneous -               854              

4,029           7,197           

26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 26.1 28,058         12,967         
Travelling and conveyance 1,366           1,152           
Legal and professional charges 508              282              
Fees and subscription 5,317           5,724           
Telephone, telex and postage 1,408           1,947           
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,248           1,035           
Auditors' remuneration 26.3 1,160           1,120           
Printing and stationary 92                475              
Depreciation 5.2 680              656              
Utilities 626              576              
Repairs and maintenance 2,818           514              
Advertisement 103              25                
Entertainment 1,139           219              
Others 7                  318              

44,531         27,010         

26.2 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,000           1,000           
Out of pocket expenses 160              120              

1,160           1,120           

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.12,468 thousand (2021: Rs.9,200 thousand) in respect of 
staff retirement benefits.

25.1

26.1

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 452.764 thousand (2021: Rs.615 thousand ) in respect 
of staff retirement benefits.

Salaries and other benefits includes Rs. 3,075 thousand (2021: Rs. 2,459 thousand) in respect of staff 
retirement benefits.
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5.5

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Land - lease hold 14,997         11,463             
Building - factory 480,770       454,178           
Plant and machinery 481,771       504,910           
Coating sheds 60,264         58,878             

The Leasehold land comprising 422.88 acres of land situated at Nooriabad District Jamshoro, Sindh

5.6 Capital work-in-progress

As at 01 July   Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2021 (Transfers) 2022

Re-stated
-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------

Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         2,500    -               55,007             

60,761         2,500    -               63,261             

As at 01 July  Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2020 (Transfers) 2021

-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------
Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         -        -               52,507             

60,761         -        -               60,761             

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 10,813         6,936               
Less: Current maturity of long term deposits -               -                   

10,813.00    6,936               
Management believe there was no impairment in long term deposit balances.

7. INVESTMENT Note
HPY Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. 7.1 241,469       241,469           
Less: Withdrawn / Reversal during the year (Note 5.2) (241,469)      (241,469)          

-                  0 -                     0 

7.1

Cost

Cost

Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of revalued Assets  in the statement of Financial Position would 
have been as follows

HPY Coating (Private) Limited ("HPY") is a joint venture company incorporated in Pakistan on 17th April 2017, in 
collaboration with Jiangsu PuYuan Steel Pipe Industry Company Limited (“PuYuan”) on the basis of a 55%:45% 
shareholding with Huffaz share 55% (23,100,000 shares @ 10 each) of the issued share capital in HPY against transfer 
of Land & Building therein against transfer and PuYuan share 45% (18,900,000 shares @ 10 each) shares against 
transfer of plant machinery and equipment for setting up the project. The name of the Chief Executive of the company is 
Mr. Hafiz Abdul Majid. The Board of directors of Joint Venture company will comprise 5 (Five) directors, with Huffaz 
nominating 3 (Three) Directors and PuYuan nominating 2 (Two) Directors on the Board. The Purpose of investment is 
setting up a project for providing pipe coating services to its prospective customers (“Project”). 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

7.2

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 98,758         62,077             
         - in transit -               -                   
Spare parts and loose tools 3,854           3,854               

102,612       65,930             
Less: Provision for impairment / obsolescence (7,000)          (5,000)              

95,612         60,930             
8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE
91,165         113,338           

155,443       133,698           
1,194,551    1,250,158        

276,957       252,925           
1,718,116    1,750,120        

Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off (NOTE#9.1) (23,252)        (107,940)          

1,694,864    1,642,180        

9.1

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 33,281         19,990             
Considered doubtful -               662                  

33,281         20,652             
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -               (662)                 

33,281         19,990             

The Company has engaged an Independent Professional Valuator M/S. K.G. Traders Pvt Ltd, for valuation of stock of 
seamless pipes, kept in hand. A valuation report has been submitted by the valuator dated March 24, 2023. 
Management has reviewed the independent valuation and also made its judgment on a prudent/conservative basis in 
order to a certain the likely recoverable values. On the basis of its judgment, an impairment / Diminution in value of 
stock written of in the year was Rs 23,252 (2021: Rs 107,940).

Raw material - in hand
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Rejection / scrap material

During the period 2017 to 2022 over 5 years period actual operating activities have not been carried out. The 
company was faced with the difficulties in transfer of legal title of land and coating sheds in the name of HPY 
Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. Plant and equipment of the other joint venture partner was also not installed to date. Equity 
share capital to both joint venture partners was also not issued as was envisaged in the joint venture 
agreement. In view of these circumstances, the Directors and shareholders of the company have decided to 
derecognized/ withdrawl from investment in the joint venture company. Consiquently, investment have been 
derecognized retrosepectively form the year 2018 and corrospondingly, property plant and equipment have 
been recognized in the year at the respective fair values as of June 30, 2022. The latest unaudited available 
financial statements of the Company was prepared upto the year 2021. On this basis a provision for loss  was 
also recognized in the previous periods representing 55% of the loss as per unaudited financial statement. The 
above investment was categorized under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification in the previous year. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

2022 2021
27. OTHER OPERATING CHARGES Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)-----
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -               -               
Workers' Welfare Fund -               -               
Exchange loss -               -               

-               -               

27.1

28. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Notinal income 17,412         -               
Scrap sales -               2,966           
Interest On Deposit/ Advance of Joint venture company net off ECL -               (467)             
Others 28.1 -               2,787           

17,412         5,285           

28.1

29. FINANCE COST

Interest on workers' profit participation fund 19.1 -               36,174         
Bank charges 918              798              

918              36,972         

Carrying value of  interest-free long term loan (Note# 18) has been remeasured at present value at the 
discount rate of 11% and the diffrence arrived at between the carrying value of long term loan liability 
and present value is notional income recorded in the current period. Rewinding of notional income 
would be recorded in the subsequent period upon repayment of the installement of long term loan at the 
original amount.

Due to losses (including tax losses in current and previous period, there were no other operating 
charges recorded by the company)

30. TAXATION

2022 2021
Re-stated

-----(Rupees in '000)------

Current
for the year 1,680           1,545           
for prior years (350)             (3,944)          

1,330           (2,399)          
Deferred (28,817)        (26,085)        

(27,487)        (28,484)        

30.1

30.2

Tax Year
2021 1,458 1,545
2020 13,960 17,904
2019 49,033 59,373
2018 44,524 52,326
2017 63,965 64,320

30.3 Relationship between tax expenses and accounting profit

2022 2021
Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

(Loss)/Profit before taxation (135,165)      (138,537)      
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (39,198)        (39,089)        
Tax effect of temporary / permanent difference (28,817)        (13,977)        
Effect of prior year charges (350)             (3,944)          
Reduction in Tax liability due to Rebates -                   -               
Net Tax effect due to export sales -                   -               
Turnover Tax 1,680           1,545           
Effect of change in tax rate -                   -               
Others disallowances due to turnover tax 39,198         37,742         

(27,487)        (17,723)        

Provision of 

Sufficient provision for tax has been made in these consolidated financial statements taking into
account the profit or loss for the year and various admissible and inadmissible allowances and
deduction under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Tax Assessment
.----------(Rupees in '000') -----------

The management believes amount provided for income tax liability for current and previous year has 
been in accordance with the prevalent income tax law and sufficient enough to meet the tax liability of 
the company. An analysis of tax provision and tax assessment for past 5 years is as under:
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5.5

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Land - lease hold 14,997         11,463             
Building - factory 480,770       454,178           
Plant and machinery 481,771       504,910           
Coating sheds 60,264         58,878             

The Leasehold land comprising 422.88 acres of land situated at Nooriabad District Jamshoro, Sindh

5.6 Capital work-in-progress

As at 01 July   Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2021 (Transfers) 2022

Re-stated
-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------

Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         2,500    -               55,007             

60,761         2,500    -               63,261             

As at 01 July  Additions(Written off) / As at 30 June 
2020 (Transfers) 2021

-------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------
Building - Head Office and Factory 8,254           -        -               8,254               
Plant and Machinery (Spiral Welded Plant) 52,507         -        -               52,507             

60,761         -        -               60,761             

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits 10,813         6,936               
Less: Current maturity of long term deposits -               -                   

10,813.00    6,936               
Management believe there was no impairment in long term deposit balances.

7. INVESTMENT Note
HPY Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. 7.1 241,469       241,469           
Less: Withdrawn / Reversal during the year (Note 5.2) (241,469)      (241,469)          

-                  0 -                     0 

7.1

Cost

Cost

Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of revalued Assets  in the statement of Financial Position would 
have been as follows

HPY Coating (Private) Limited ("HPY") is a joint venture company incorporated in Pakistan on 17th April 2017, in 
collaboration with Jiangsu PuYuan Steel Pipe Industry Company Limited (“PuYuan”) on the basis of a 55%:45% 
shareholding with Huffaz share 55% (23,100,000 shares @ 10 each) of the issued share capital in HPY against transfer 
of Land & Building therein against transfer and PuYuan share 45% (18,900,000 shares @ 10 each) shares against 
transfer of plant machinery and equipment for setting up the project. The name of the Chief Executive of the company is 
Mr. Hafiz Abdul Majid. The Board of directors of Joint Venture company will comprise 5 (Five) directors, with Huffaz 
nominating 3 (Three) Directors and PuYuan nominating 2 (Two) Directors on the Board. The Purpose of investment is 
setting up a project for providing pipe coating services to its prospective customers (“Project”). 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

7.2

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 98,758         62,077             
         - in transit -               -                   
Spare parts and loose tools 3,854           3,854               

102,612       65,930             
Less: Provision for impairment / obsolescence (7,000)          (5,000)              

95,612         60,930             
8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE
91,165         113,338           

155,443       133,698           
1,194,551    1,250,158        

276,957       252,925           
1,718,116    1,750,120        

Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off (NOTE#9.1) (23,252)        (107,940)          

1,694,864    1,642,180        

9.1

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 33,281         19,990             
Considered doubtful -               662                  

33,281         20,652             
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -               (662)                 

33,281         19,990             

The Company has engaged an Independent Professional Valuator M/S. K.G. Traders Pvt Ltd, for valuation of stock of 
seamless pipes, kept in hand. A valuation report has been submitted by the valuator dated March 24, 2023. 
Management has reviewed the independent valuation and also made its judgment on a prudent/conservative basis in 
order to a certain the likely recoverable values. On the basis of its judgment, an impairment / Diminution in value of 
stock written of in the year was Rs 23,252 (2021: Rs 107,940).

Raw material - in hand
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Rejection / scrap material

During the period 2017 to 2022 over 5 years period actual operating activities have not been carried out. The 
company was faced with the difficulties in transfer of legal title of land and coating sheds in the name of HPY 
Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. Plant and equipment of the other joint venture partner was also not installed to date. Equity 
share capital to both joint venture partners was also not issued as was envisaged in the joint venture 
agreement. In view of these circumstances, the Directors and shareholders of the company have decided to 
derecognized/ withdrawl from investment in the joint venture company. Consiquently, investment have been 
derecognized retrosepectively form the year 2018 and corrospondingly, property plant and equipment have 
been recognized in the year at the respective fair values as of June 30, 2022. The latest unaudited available 
financial statements of the Company was prepared upto the year 2021. On this basis a provision for loss  was 
also recognized in the previous periods representing 55% of the loss as per unaudited financial statement. The 
above investment was categorized under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification in the previous year. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

10.1 Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis

10.2

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------

Less than 90 days 33,281        -               19,990         -                   
91 to 180 days old -              -               -               -                   
181 to 365 days old -              -               -               -                   
More than one year - Direct Parties -               662              662                  

33,281        -               20,652         662                  

10.3

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 14,166         6,910               
Advances to employees for expenses 8,589           12,695             
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 9,044           7,767               

31,799         27,372             

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently 
upon supply  of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances would be settled down with 
employees  by way of deduction from their Full & Final settlement, whenever will be paid.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits 12.1 7,600           11,240             
Short term deposits/Advance with HPY Coating 12.2 -               20,828             
Add: accrued mark up -               5,623

-               26,451
Less: Expected Credit Loss(ECL) -               (6,090)              

-               20,361             
7,600           31,601             

12.1 This represents deposits held by Customers of the Company in accordance with the supply agreement 
entered for supply of Company's product

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Trade deposits - considered good 9,106           15,364             
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts 1,506           2,406               

7,600           12,958             

12.2

12.3

2022 2021
The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:

This includes deposit of parts and tools Rs. 20,361 thousand and payment of priliminary and other expenses Rs. 467
thousand on incorporation of the joint venture company HPY Coating Pvt Ltd. The tools have been deposited and
payment of expenses were made as per the joint venture agreement. Interest Is provided on outstanding balance at
KIBOR as provided under section 5(4) of companies (Investment in Associated companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017. Expected credit loss has also been provided due to non operation in the investee company. As the
joint venture company has not yet commenced its operations as given in note 7.2. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Trade debtos include amount due from associate Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.Nil). Maximum amount due from associates at any 
time during the year was Rs.Nil.

During the year under review, The tools deposited as above have been returned to the company upon the reversal of 
transaction about the joint venture company(note 7.2).

2022 2021
27. OTHER OPERATING CHARGES Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)-----
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -               -               
Workers' Welfare Fund -               -               
Exchange loss -               -               

-               -               

27.1

28. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Notinal income 17,412         -               
Scrap sales -               2,966           
Interest On Deposit/ Advance of Joint venture company net off ECL -               (467)             
Others 28.1 -               2,787           

17,412         5,285           

28.1

29. FINANCE COST

Interest on workers' profit participation fund 19.1 -               36,174         
Bank charges 918              798              

918              36,972         

Carrying value of  interest-free long term loan (Note# 18) has been remeasured at present value at the 
discount rate of 11% and the diffrence arrived at between the carrying value of long term loan liability 
and present value is notional income recorded in the current period. Rewinding of notional income 
would be recorded in the subsequent period upon repayment of the installement of long term loan at the 
original amount.

Due to losses (including tax losses in current and previous period, there were no other operating 
charges recorded by the company)

30. TAXATION

2022 2021
Re-stated

-----(Rupees in '000)------

Current
for the year 1,680           1,545           
for prior years (350)             (3,944)          

1,330           (2,399)          
Deferred (28,817)        (26,085)        

(27,487)        (28,484)        

30.1

30.2

Tax Year
2021 1,458 1,545
2020 13,960 17,904
2019 49,033 59,373
2018 44,524 52,326
2017 63,965 64,320

30.3 Relationship between tax expenses and accounting profit

2022 2021
Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

(Loss)/Profit before taxation (135,165)      (138,537)      
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (39,198)        (39,089)        
Tax effect of temporary / permanent difference (28,817)        (13,977)        
Effect of prior year charges (350)             (3,944)          
Reduction in Tax liability due to Rebates -                   -               
Net Tax effect due to export sales -                   -               
Turnover Tax 1,680           1,545           
Effect of change in tax rate -                   -               
Others disallowances due to turnover tax 39,198         37,742         

(27,487)        (17,723)        

Provision of 

Sufficient provision for tax has been made in these consolidated financial statements taking into
account the profit or loss for the year and various admissible and inadmissible allowances and
deduction under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Tax Assessment
.----------(Rupees in '000') -----------

The management believes amount provided for income tax liability for current and previous year has 
been in accordance with the prevalent income tax law and sufficient enough to meet the tax liability of 
the company. An analysis of tax provision and tax assessment for past 5 years is as under:
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7.2

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 98,758         62,077             
         - in transit -               -                   
Spare parts and loose tools 3,854           3,854               

102,612       65,930             
Less: Provision for impairment / obsolescence (7,000)          (5,000)              

95,612         60,930             
8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE
91,165         113,338           

155,443       133,698           
1,194,551    1,250,158        

276,957       252,925           
1,718,116    1,750,120        

Impairment/ diminution in value of finished goods written off (NOTE#9.1) (23,252)        (107,940)          

1,694,864    1,642,180        

9.1

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 33,281         19,990             
Considered doubtful -               662                  

33,281         20,652             
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -               (662)                 

33,281         19,990             

The Company has engaged an Independent Professional Valuator M/S. K.G. Traders Pvt Ltd, for valuation of stock of 
seamless pipes, kept in hand. A valuation report has been submitted by the valuator dated March 24, 2023. 
Management has reviewed the independent valuation and also made its judgment on a prudent/conservative basis in 
order to a certain the likely recoverable values. On the basis of its judgment, an impairment / Diminution in value of 
stock written of in the year was Rs 23,252 (2021: Rs 107,940).

Raw material - in hand
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Rejection / scrap material

During the period 2017 to 2022 over 5 years period actual operating activities have not been carried out. The 
company was faced with the difficulties in transfer of legal title of land and coating sheds in the name of HPY 
Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. Plant and equipment of the other joint venture partner was also not installed to date. Equity 
share capital to both joint venture partners was also not issued as was envisaged in the joint venture 
agreement. In view of these circumstances, the Directors and shareholders of the company have decided to 
derecognized/ withdrawl from investment in the joint venture company. Consiquently, investment have been 
derecognized retrosepectively form the year 2018 and corrospondingly, property plant and equipment have 
been recognized in the year at the respective fair values as of June 30, 2022. The latest unaudited available 
financial statements of the Company was prepared upto the year 2021. On this basis a provision for loss  was 
also recognized in the previous periods representing 55% of the loss as per unaudited financial statement. The 
above investment was categorized under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification in the previous year. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

10.1 Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis

10.2

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------

Less than 90 days 33,281        -               19,990         -                   
91 to 180 days old -              -               -               -                   
181 to 365 days old -              -               -               -                   
More than one year - Direct Parties -               662              662                  

33,281        -               20,652         662                  

10.3

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 14,166         6,910               
Advances to employees for expenses 8,589           12,695             
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 9,044           7,767               

31,799         27,372             

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently 
upon supply  of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances would be settled down with 
employees  by way of deduction from their Full & Final settlement, whenever will be paid.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits 12.1 7,600           11,240             
Short term deposits/Advance with HPY Coating 12.2 -               20,828             
Add: accrued mark up -               5,623

-               26,451
Less: Expected Credit Loss(ECL) -               (6,090)              

-               20,361             
7,600           31,601             

12.1 This represents deposits held by Customers of the Company in accordance with the supply agreement 
entered for supply of Company's product

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Trade deposits - considered good 9,106           15,364             
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts 1,506           2,406               

7,600           12,958             

12.2

12.3

2022 2021
The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:

This includes deposit of parts and tools Rs. 20,361 thousand and payment of priliminary and other expenses Rs. 467
thousand on incorporation of the joint venture company HPY Coating Pvt Ltd. The tools have been deposited and
payment of expenses were made as per the joint venture agreement. Interest Is provided on outstanding balance at
KIBOR as provided under section 5(4) of companies (Investment in Associated companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017. Expected credit loss has also been provided due to non operation in the investee company. As the
joint venture company has not yet commenced its operations as given in note 7.2. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Trade debtos include amount due from associate Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.Nil). Maximum amount due from associates at any 
time during the year was Rs.Nil.

During the year under review, The tools deposited as above have been returned to the company upon the reversal of 
transaction about the joint venture company(note 7.2).

30 June 30 June
2022 30 June

Re-stated
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax Refundable 22,723         16,748             
Letter of credit 1,169           1,403               
Margin against guarantee 11,599         27,177             

35,491         45,328             

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION

8,754           2,982               
8,341           3,373

17,095         6,355               

Reversal of provision for the prior year 350              3,944
(1,680)          (1,545)              
15,765         8,754               

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

36                175                  
With banks in current accounts 13,594         27,325             
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21                21                    

13,651         27,521             
Less: Book Over draft (1,203)          (5,113)              

12,448         22,408             
16. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated

Authorized:

70,000,000   70,000,000   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000       700,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278   12,200,278   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 122,004       122,004           

38,906,565   38,906,565   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each issued as bonus shares 389,066       389,066           

4,377,460     4,377,460     Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775         43,775             

55,484,303   55,484,303   554,844       554,844           

16.1

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

(Number of shares)

Provision for taxation

Cash in hand

Tax receivable as at 1 July 
Tax paid during the year

The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2021: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the foreign 
sponsors of the Company.

31. (LOSS) PER SHARE - basic and diluted 2022 2021
Re-stated

(107,678)      (110,053)      

55,484         55,484         

(Loss) per share - basic and diluted (1.94)            (1.98)            
There was no diluted earning per share

32. Changes in working capital 
Decrease / (increase) in current assets 
Stores and spare parts (34,682)        4,128           
Stock in trade (52,684)        (59,435)        
Trade debts (13,291)        (8,128)          
Loans and advances, trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables (4,427)          (1,664)          
Trade deposits 24,001         (1,962)          
Other Receivable 9,837           (7,447)          

(71,246)        (74,508)        
Increase in current liability
Trade and other payables 38,656         (59,730)        

(32,590)        (134,238)      
32.1 There were no non-cash assets or liabilities effecting cash flow statement.

33. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Managerial remuneration 6,274    6,274 -           -            12,538         9,866           
House rent 2,823    2,823 -           -            5,642           4,440           
Utilities -        -     -           -            1,253           987              
Gratuity 758       758    -           -            1,991           1,274           

9,855    9,855 -           -            21,424         16,567         

Number of persons 1 1 1 1 9 9

33.1

33.2

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees)-----------

(Loss) after tax

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

Chief Executive Director Executives

(Number in '000)

------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------

In addition to the above Chief Executive, Director, Executive and certain other employees are provided with free 
use of Company maintained vehicles in accordance with the Company's policy.

During the year no amount (2021: Rs. 75 thousand) was paid to Directors for attending the Board of Directors' 
meeting. 

34. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
2022 2021

Seamless Pipe and Tubes
Normal Capacity 55,000     55,000       
Actual Production 270          800            
Percentage 0.5% 1.5%

Coating of Seamless Tubular Products
Normal Capacity 30,000     30,000       
Actual Production 3,318       4,829         
Percentage 11.1% 16.1%

Machinery & Machinery Components
Normal Capacity 3,500       3,500         
Actual Production -           -             
Percentage -           -             

Capacity under utilized in the year due to shortage of demand.

35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

-------Metric Ton---------

The production capacity of the plant is dependent on the relative proportions of the various types of seamless 
pipes and tubes produced by the company.

The permanent number of employees as at year end were 100 (2021: 102) and total average number of 
employees were 96 (2021: 108) the average number of factory employees in the year were 86 (2021: 96).
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10.1 Credit is allowed to costumers generally is a 90-180 days period extended on a case to case basis

10.2

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------

Less than 90 days 33,281        -               19,990         -                   
91 to 180 days old -              -               -               -                   
181 to 365 days old -              -               -               -                   
More than one year - Direct Parties -               662              662                  

33,281        -               20,652         662                  

10.3

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 14,166         6,910               
Advances to employees for expenses 8,589           12,695             
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 9,044           7,767               

31,799         27,372             

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently 
upon supply  of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances would be settled down with 
employees  by way of deduction from their Full & Final settlement, whenever will be paid.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits 12.1 7,600           11,240             
Short term deposits/Advance with HPY Coating 12.2 -               20,828             
Add: accrued mark up -               5,623

-               26,451
Less: Expected Credit Loss(ECL) -               (6,090)              

-               20,361             
7,600           31,601             

12.1 This represents deposits held by Customers of the Company in accordance with the supply agreement 
entered for supply of Company's product

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

Re-stated

Trade deposits - considered good 9,106           15,364             
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts 1,506           2,406               

7,600           12,958             

12.2

12.3

2022 2021
The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:

This includes deposit of parts and tools Rs. 20,361 thousand and payment of priliminary and other expenses Rs. 467
thousand on incorporation of the joint venture company HPY Coating Pvt Ltd. The tools have been deposited and
payment of expenses were made as per the joint venture agreement. Interest Is provided on outstanding balance at
KIBOR as provided under section 5(4) of companies (Investment in Associated companies or Associated Undertakings)
Regulations 2017. Expected credit loss has also been provided due to non operation in the investee company. As the
joint venture company has not yet commenced its operations as given in note 7.2. 

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Trade debtos include amount due from associate Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.Nil). Maximum amount due from associates at any 
time during the year was Rs.Nil.

During the year under review, The tools deposited as above have been returned to the company upon the reversal of 
transaction about the joint venture company(note 7.2).

30 June 30 June
2022 30 June

Re-stated
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax Refundable 22,723         16,748             
Letter of credit 1,169           1,403               
Margin against guarantee 11,599         27,177             

35,491         45,328             

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION

8,754           2,982               
8,341           3,373

17,095         6,355               

Reversal of provision for the prior year 350              3,944
(1,680)          (1,545)              
15,765         8,754               

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

36                175                  
With banks in current accounts 13,594         27,325             
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21                21                    

13,651         27,521             
Less: Book Over draft (1,203)          (5,113)              

12,448         22,408             
16. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated

Authorized:

70,000,000   70,000,000   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000       700,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278   12,200,278   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 122,004       122,004           

38,906,565   38,906,565   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each issued as bonus shares 389,066       389,066           

4,377,460     4,377,460     Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775         43,775             

55,484,303   55,484,303   554,844       554,844           

16.1

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

(Number of shares)

Provision for taxation

Cash in hand

Tax receivable as at 1 July 
Tax paid during the year

The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2021: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the foreign 
sponsors of the Company.

34. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
2022 2021

Seamless Pipe and Tubes
Normal Capacity 55,000     55,000       
Actual Production 270          800            
Percentage 0.5% 1.5%

Coating of Seamless Tubular Products
Normal Capacity 30,000     30,000       
Actual Production 3,318       4,829         
Percentage 11.1% 16.1%

Machinery & Machinery Components
Normal Capacity 3,500       3,500         
Actual Production -           -             
Percentage -           -             

Capacity under utilized in the year due to shortage of demand.

35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

-------Metric Ton---------

The production capacity of the plant is dependent on the relative proportions of the various types of seamless 
pipes and tubes produced by the company.

The permanent number of employees as at year end were 100 (2021: 102) and total average number of 
employees were 96 (2021: 108) the average number of factory employees in the year were 86 (2021: 96).
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30 June 30 June
2022 30 June

Re-stated
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax Refundable 22,723         16,748             
Letter of credit 1,169           1,403               
Margin against guarantee 11,599         27,177             

35,491         45,328             

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION

8,754           2,982               
8,341           3,373

17,095         6,355               

Reversal of provision for the prior year 350              3,944
(1,680)          (1,545)              
15,765         8,754               

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

36                175                  
With banks in current accounts 13,594         27,325             
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21                21                    

13,651         27,521             
Less: Book Over draft (1,203)          (5,113)              

12,448         22,408             
16. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated

Authorized:

70,000,000   70,000,000   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000       700,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278   12,200,278   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 122,004       122,004           

38,906,565   38,906,565   Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each issued as bonus shares 389,066       389,066           

4,377,460     4,377,460     Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775         43,775             

55,484,303   55,484,303   554,844       554,844           

16.1

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

(Number of shares)

Provision for taxation

Cash in hand

Tax receivable as at 1 July 
Tax paid during the year

The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2021: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the foreign 
sponsors of the Company.

2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)-------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity  19.1 105,094       98,224             
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid -                   

105,094       98,224             
Deferred taxation - net  19.2 1,117,558    1,143,954        

1,222,652    1,242,178        
Interest on long term loan 19.3 360,839       -                   

1,583,491    1,242,178        

19.1 Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined benefit 
obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 18.1.3 95,786         88,138             
Unrecognized actuarial gain / (loss) -               -                   
Benefits due but not paid during the year 9,308           10,086             

105,094       98,224             
19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,137         88,562             
Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           -                   
Interest cost on defined benefits/obligation 8,814           7,334               
Benefits due but not paid during the year -               (4,570)              
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (8,150)              
Benefits paid during the year -               -                   
Gain ands losses arising on plan settlement 
Remesaurements:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographis assumptions -               
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 122              57                    
Expreience adjustments (8,470)          (8,207)              
Obligation as at 30 June 2020 95,786         88,138             

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           
Interest cost -               -                   
Net actuarial loss / (gain) 8,814           7,334               

15,996         12,296             

19.1.5

Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate for year end valuation 13.25% 10.00%
Salary increase rate N/A 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

19.1.6 Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Number of employees covered by the scheme 100              90

Actuarial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method 
and the following significant assumptions have been used

 Set back 1 
Year 

 Set back 1 
Year 

36. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

36.1

Related parties comprise of  
 - Joint Venture / subsidiary (Note 7)
 - Associated companies 
 - Directors of the Company (Note 32)
 - Companies in which directors also hold directorship
 - Related group companies
 - Key management personnel (Note 33)
 - Staff retirement benefit funds.

36.2 Common Holding

36.3 All related party transactions are unsecured and settle by way of banking transactions.

36.4 Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Name Nature of Nature of transaction
relationship

Re-stated
------(Rupees in '000)-------

Hafiz Abdul Waheed and 
Brothers Pvt Ltd

Associated 
Company Sale of goods -                 -             

Receipts -                 1,000         

Outstanding balance 7,714              7,714         
Purchase of Goods NIL NIL
Outstanding balance by 
purchase of Goods NIL NIL

Huffaz Corporation Pvt Ltd
Associated 
Company Sale of goods 15,480            8,180         

Receipts in respect of
sale of goods 14,762            6,000         
Outstanding balance by 
sale of goods 2,808              3,527         
Purchase of goods NIL NIL
Outstanding balance by 
of purchase of goods

19,163            19,163       

Transactions with directors Related party Sponsors' advances received 144,883          250,773     
Sponsors' advances paid 6,514              427            

Key management personnel 
including CEO & Directors Remuneration 28,058            26,422       

Composition and Relationship

Director of the Company Hafiz Abdul Waheed (10.49%), Hafiz Abdul Sami (1.69%) & Hafiz Abdul Aleem 
(1.62%) shares in the Company and is the owner of Huffaz Corporation (Pvt) Ltd.

Director of the Company Hafiz Abdul Waheed (10.49%), Hafiz Abdul Sami (1.69%) & Hafiz Abdul Aleem 
(1.62%) shares in the Company and is the owner of M/s Hafiz Abdul Waheed & Brothers Pvt Ltd

20212022

Balance as at 30 June in relation to transactions related to related parties are as follows: -             

-             
Name Nature of Nature of transaction

relationship
Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)-------

Hafiz Abdul Waheed and 
Brothers Pvt Ltd

Associated 
Company

Balance as at date of 
Balance Sheet - Net (7,714)            (7,714)        

Huffaz Corporation Pvt Ltd
Associated 
Company Sale of goods (15,480)          (3,527)        

HPY Coating (Private) Limited Joint Venture
Balance as at the date of 
balance sheet -                 20,828       

Transactions with directors Related party
Balance as at the date of 
balance sheet (471,508)         (333,092)    

Staff Retirement Benefit-Gratuity 105,094          98,224       

HPY Coating (Pvt) Ltd, Joint Venture Investment -                 -             

20212022



2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)-------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity  19.1 105,094       98,224             
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid -                   

105,094       98,224             
Deferred taxation - net  19.2 1,117,558    1,143,954        

1,222,652    1,242,178        
Interest on long term loan 19.3 360,839       -                   

1,583,491    1,242,178        

19.1 Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined benefit 
obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 18.1.3 95,786         88,138             
Unrecognized actuarial gain / (loss) -               -                   
Benefits due but not paid during the year 9,308           10,086             

105,094       98,224             
19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,137         88,562             
Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           -                   
Interest cost on defined benefits/obligation 8,814           7,334               
Benefits due but not paid during the year -               (4,570)              
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (8,150)              
Benefits paid during the year -               -                   
Gain ands losses arising on plan settlement 
Remesaurements:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographis assumptions -               
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 122              57                    
Expreience adjustments (8,470)          (8,207)              
Obligation as at 30 June 2020 95,786         88,138             

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           
Interest cost -               -                   
Net actuarial loss / (gain) 8,814           7,334               

15,996         12,296             

19.1.5

Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate for year end valuation 13.25% 10.00%
Salary increase rate N/A 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

19.1.6 Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Number of employees covered by the scheme 100              90

Actuarial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method 
and the following significant assumptions have been used

 Set back 1 
Year 

 Set back 1 
Year 
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Balance as at 30 June in relation to transactions related to related parties are as follows: -             

-             
Name Nature of Nature of transaction

relationship
Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)-------

Hafiz Abdul Waheed and 
Brothers Pvt Ltd

Associated 
Company

Balance as at date of 
Balance Sheet - Net (7,714)            (7,714)        

Huffaz Corporation Pvt Ltd
Associated 
Company Sale of goods (15,480)          (3,527)        

HPY Coating (Private) Limited Joint Venture
Balance as at the date of 
balance sheet -                 20,828       

Transactions with directors Related party
Balance as at the date of 
balance sheet (471,508)         (333,092)    

Staff Retirement Benefit-Gratuity 105,094          98,224       

HPY Coating (Pvt) Ltd, Joint Venture Investment -                 -             

20212022

37. OPERATING SEGMENTS

37.1 Segment revenue and results
Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

For the period ended 30 June 2022
Revenue from contract with customers 21,509 112,808 134,317
Cost of revenue from contract with customers (38,019)    (199,397)    (237,416)    
Gross (Loss)/Profit (16,510)    (86,589)      (103,099)    

For the period ended 30 June 2021 (Re-stated)
Revenue from contract with customers 78,440 18,802 97,243
Cost of revenue from contract with customers (123,607)  (42,997)      (169,886)    
Gross (Loss)/Profit (45,167)    (24,195)      (72,643)      

Reconciliation of segment results with profit after tax is as follows:
2022 2021

Re-Stated

Total results for reportable segments (103,099)    (72,643)      
Selling, distribution and administrative expenses (48,560)      (34,207)      
Other operating expenses -             -             
Other operating income 17,412       5,285         
Financial charges (918)           (36,972)      
Taxation 27,487       28,484       
(Loss) after tax (107,678)    (110,053)    

37.2 Segment assets and liabilities
Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

As at 2022
Segment assets 6,423,775 1,303,094 7,726,869     
Segment liabilities 751,418     -               751,418        

As at 2021 (re-stated)
Segment assets 6,417,585 1,314,445 7,686,982     
Segment liabilities 1,010,532  -               1,010,532     

The Company has identified Seamless and Coating as two reportable segments. Performance is measured 
based on respective segment results. Information regarding the Company's reportable segment is 
presented below: 

--------------Rs in '000-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

--------------Rs in '000-----------



2022 2021
Re-stated

-------(Rupees in '000)-------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity  19.1 105,094       98,224             
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid -                   

105,094       98,224             
Deferred taxation - net  19.2 1,117,558    1,143,954        

1,222,652    1,242,178        
Interest on long term loan 19.3 360,839       -                   

1,583,491    1,242,178        

19.1 Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined benefit 
obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 18.1.3 95,786         88,138             
Unrecognized actuarial gain / (loss) -               -                   
Benefits due but not paid during the year 9,308           10,086             

105,094       98,224             
19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 88,137         88,562             
Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           -                   
Interest cost on defined benefits/obligation 8,814           7,334               
Benefits due but not paid during the year -               (4,570)              
Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (8,150)              
Benefits paid during the year -               -                   
Gain ands losses arising on plan settlement 
Remesaurements:
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in demographis assumptions -               
Actuarial loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 122              57                    
Expreience adjustments (8,470)          (8,207)              
Obligation as at 30 June 2020 95,786         88,138             

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost 4,694           4,962               
Past services cost (credit) 2,489           
Interest cost -               -                   
Net actuarial loss / (gain) 8,814           7,334               

15,996         12,296             

19.1.5

Discount rate 10.00% 8.50%
Discount rate for year end valuation 13.25% 10.00%
Salary increase rate N/A 9.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

19.1.6 Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Number of employees covered by the scheme 100              90

Actuarial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method 
and the following significant assumptions have been used

 Set back 1 
Year 

 Set back 1 
Year 

19.1.7 Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Discount rate 1% (5,502)          (5,502)
Salary growth rate 1% 6,315           6,315

19.1.8 The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:
Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is 
measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.
Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. 
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
 benefit obligation.

19.1.9 The movement of the liability can go either way.
19.1.10 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021/2022 is 5 years.

The expected gratuity expense for the next one year from July 1, 2022 would be 15,273 thousand 
(July 1, 2021 to Rs. 11,510 thousand )

19.2 Deferred taxation - net
2022 2021

Re-stated
------(Rupees in '000)------

188,169       203,485           
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,031,155    1,039,224        

274              342                  
1,219,598    1,243,051        

(28,048)        (26,121)            
Provision for compensated absences (4,737)          (4,300)              
Others (67,226)        (67,226)            
Provision for store & Spare (2,030)          (1,450)              

(102,041)      (99,097)            

1,117,827    1,143,954        

19.3

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32,912         31,322             
77,697         84,375             
38,385         35,499             

Workers' profit participation fund 20.1 -               427,599           
15,337         15,337             

696              696                  
-               4,334               

20.2 97,840         52,658             
16,334         14,829             

Gratuity due but not yet paid -               -                   
709              699                  

279,910       667,349           

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:

 Increase in 
assumption 

Change in 
assumption Decrease in 

assumption

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

 Increase / (decrease) in 
defined benefit obligation due 

to 

Provision for compensated absences

Others

Finance lease arrangement / DM financing

Bills payable

Tax deducted at source
Accrued liabilities
Trade creditors

This represent brought forward outstanding liability of interest on outstanding balance in respect of WPPF reclassified 
into deffered liability. In accordance with an agreement with the workers representative (union)- (note 18), upon payment 
of the entire amount of liability of WPPF the interest amount may be considered as cancelled or waived in the future.

Defined benefit plan's obligation

Workers' welfare fund
Unclaimed dividend

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Advances from customers

20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

427,599       391,425           
-               -                   

Accrued Interest 31 2                  -               36,174             
427,599       427,599           

-               -                   
Reclassified into long term loan 18 (66,760)        -                   

Defered liability 19 (360,839)      -                   
Balance at the end of the year -               427,599           

Reclassificatin in the year have been ignored for cash flow statement purposes.

20.2

2022 2021
21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS/DIRECTORS ADVANCES - Unsecured Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

471,508       333,092           

471,508       333,092           

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Contingencies

22.1.1

22.1.2 Tax Contigencies

Custom Duty/Sales Tax

22.1.3

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1

22.2.2

The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) has levied Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) in 
accordance with GIDC Act 2015 and has sent a bill of Rs 90 million for the levy of GIDC cess of previous periods up to 
and including the year 2021. The company has challenged this bill and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
contending the said levy was not legal as per the para 37 & 42 of the order passed by the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan and obtain a stay order against the payment of aforesaid bill of SSGC. The legal advisor of the company has 
expressed his legal opinion stating that, the matter is ‘subjudice ’ before the court and there would not be any likelihood 
that claim of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) would be materialized.

The Collector of Custom, Hyderabad issued the show cause notice No 832 dated 17/09/2020 and subsequently filled an 
FIR in this case against some Directors of Huffaz Seamless Pipes Industries Limited in respect of Custom duty & Sales 
Tax covering an amount of Rs. 61.766 million. The Company approached Honorable High Court of Sindh in this regard 
and obtained stay order. The matter is ‘subjudice ’ as the case is proceeded in Honorable High Court of Sindh. Legal 
counsel of the company is optimistic that, there would be no adverse consequences against the Company regarding 
this case and the outcome would be in the favor of the company.

Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rs. 13.129 million  (2021: Rs. 27.177 million) have been furnished in 
favor of various customers. 

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 0.000 million (2021: Rs. 4.333 million).

The facility for opening letters of Credit/Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 
million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million,

Short term sponsors loan

This represents unsecured and interest free advance from sponsors/directors 
repayable on demand.

Creditors and Advances from customers included balances due to associated undertaking Rs 19,164 thousand and Rs 
10,522 thousand respectively. The maximum amounts due at any time during the year were Rs 19,164 thousand and 
Rs 10,522 thousand respectively.

Payments made during the year

Allocation for the period
Balance as at 1 July
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37. OPERATING SEGMENTS

37.1 Segment revenue and results
Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

For the period ended 30 June 2022
Revenue from contract with customers 21,509 112,808 134,317
Cost of revenue from contract with customers (38,019)    (199,397)    (237,416)    
Gross (Loss)/Profit (16,510)    (86,589)      (103,099)    

For the period ended 30 June 2021 (Re-stated)
Revenue from contract with customers 78,440 18,802 97,243
Cost of revenue from contract with customers (123,607)  (42,997)      (169,886)    
Gross (Loss)/Profit (45,167)    (24,195)      (72,643)      

Reconciliation of segment results with profit after tax is as follows:
2022 2021

Re-Stated

Total results for reportable segments (103,099)    (72,643)      
Selling, distribution and administrative expenses (48,560)      (34,207)      
Other operating expenses -             -             
Other operating income 17,412       5,285         
Financial charges (918)           (36,972)      
Taxation 27,487       28,484       
(Loss) after tax (107,678)    (110,053)    

37.2 Segment assets and liabilities
Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

As at 2022
Segment assets 6,423,775 1,303,094 7,726,869     
Segment liabilities 751,418     -               751,418        

As at 2021 (re-stated)
Segment assets 6,417,585 1,314,445 7,686,982     
Segment liabilities 1,010,532  -               1,010,532     

The Company has identified Seamless and Coating as two reportable segments. Performance is measured 
based on respective segment results. Information regarding the Company's reportable segment is 
presented below: 

--------------Rs in '000-----------

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

--------------Rs in '000-----------

2022 2021
Re-stated

Total for reportable segment assets 7,196,751  7,156,864  
Unallocated assets 530,118     530,118     
Total assets as per statement of financial position 7,726,869  7,686,982  

Total for reportable segment liabilities 751,418     1,000,441  
Unallocated liabilities 1,632,839  1,242,178  
Total liabilities as per statement of financial position 2,384,257  2,242,619  

37.3

37.4 Segment assets reported above comprising of property, plant and equipment and stock in trade.

37.5 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2022 are located in Pakistan.

37.6

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
Financial risk management

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

Risk Management Framework

38.1 Credit risk

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of 
financial instruments:

The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the company, to set appropriate policies and systems and reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market condition and the company's activities. The Company, through its standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks of the Company.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

Revenue from a major customer of seamless segment represents an aggregate amount of Rs. 11.348 
million (2021: Rs. 31.568 million) of total seamless segment revenue of Rs. 21.508 million (2021: 78.440 
million). Further, revenue from a major customer of coating segment represents an aggregate amount of 
Rs. 110.927 million (2021: Rs. 18.802 million) out of total 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure 
to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments from its customers and 
except for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized enterprises, the 
management strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small and medium sized 
enterprises, the management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards them and makes 
provisions against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. Cash is held only with banks with high 
quality credit worthiness.

Segment revenue reported above are revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales during the year (June 2021 nil)

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Reconciliation of segment assets and segment liabilities with total assets and liabilities in the statement of 
financial position is as follows:



19.1.7 Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Discount rate 1% (5,502)          (5,502)
Salary growth rate 1% 6,315           6,315

19.1.8 The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:
Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is 
measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.
Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. 
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
 benefit obligation.

19.1.9 The movement of the liability can go either way.
19.1.10 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2021/2022 is 5 years.

The expected gratuity expense for the next one year from July 1, 2022 would be 15,273 thousand 
(July 1, 2021 to Rs. 11,510 thousand )

19.2 Deferred taxation - net
2022 2021

Re-stated
------(Rupees in '000)------

188,169       203,485           
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,031,155    1,039,224        

274              342                  
1,219,598    1,243,051        

(28,048)        (26,121)            
Provision for compensated absences (4,737)          (4,300)              
Others (67,226)        (67,226)            
Provision for store & Spare (2,030)          (1,450)              

(102,041)      (99,097)            

1,117,827    1,143,954        

19.3

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32,912         31,322             
77,697         84,375             
38,385         35,499             

Workers' profit participation fund 20.1 -               427,599           
15,337         15,337             

696              696                  
-               4,334               

20.2 97,840         52,658             
16,334         14,829             

Gratuity due but not yet paid -               -                   
709              699                  

279,910       667,349           

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:

 Increase in 
assumption 

Change in 
assumption Decrease in 

assumption

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

 Increase / (decrease) in 
defined benefit obligation due 

to 

Provision for compensated absences

Others

Finance lease arrangement / DM financing

Bills payable

Tax deducted at source
Accrued liabilities
Trade creditors

This represent brought forward outstanding liability of interest on outstanding balance in respect of WPPF reclassified 
into deffered liability. In accordance with an agreement with the workers representative (union)- (note 18), upon payment 
of the entire amount of liability of WPPF the interest amount may be considered as cancelled or waived in the future.

Defined benefit plan's obligation

Workers' welfare fund
Unclaimed dividend

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

Advances from customers

20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

427,599       391,425           
-               -                   

Accrued Interest 31 2                  -               36,174             
427,599       427,599           

-               -                   
Reclassified into long term loan 18 (66,760)        -                   

Defered liability 19 (360,839)      -                   
Balance at the end of the year -               427,599           

Reclassificatin in the year have been ignored for cash flow statement purposes.

20.2

2022 2021
21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS/DIRECTORS ADVANCES - Unsecured Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

471,508       333,092           

471,508       333,092           

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Contingencies

22.1.1

22.1.2 Tax Contigencies

Custom Duty/Sales Tax

22.1.3

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1

22.2.2

The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) has levied Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) in 
accordance with GIDC Act 2015 and has sent a bill of Rs 90 million for the levy of GIDC cess of previous periods up to 
and including the year 2021. The company has challenged this bill and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
contending the said levy was not legal as per the para 37 & 42 of the order passed by the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan and obtain a stay order against the payment of aforesaid bill of SSGC. The legal advisor of the company has 
expressed his legal opinion stating that, the matter is ‘subjudice ’ before the court and there would not be any likelihood 
that claim of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) would be materialized.

The Collector of Custom, Hyderabad issued the show cause notice No 832 dated 17/09/2020 and subsequently filled an 
FIR in this case against some Directors of Huffaz Seamless Pipes Industries Limited in respect of Custom duty & Sales 
Tax covering an amount of Rs. 61.766 million. The Company approached Honorable High Court of Sindh in this regard 
and obtained stay order. The matter is ‘subjudice ’ as the case is proceeded in Honorable High Court of Sindh. Legal 
counsel of the company is optimistic that, there would be no adverse consequences against the Company regarding 
this case and the outcome would be in the favor of the company.

Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rs. 13.129 million  (2021: Rs. 27.177 million) have been furnished in 
favor of various customers. 

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 0.000 million (2021: Rs. 4.333 million).

The facility for opening letters of Credit/Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 
million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million,

Short term sponsors loan

This represents unsecured and interest free advance from sponsors/directors 
repayable on demand.

Creditors and Advances from customers included balances due to associated undertaking Rs 19,164 thousand and Rs 
10,522 thousand respectively. The maximum amounts due at any time during the year were Rs 19,164 thousand and 
Rs 10,522 thousand respectively.

Payments made during the year

Allocation for the period
Balance as at 1 July
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2022 2021
Re-stated

Total for reportable segment assets 7,196,751  7,156,864  
Unallocated assets 530,118     530,118     
Total assets as per statement of financial position 7,726,869  7,686,982  

Total for reportable segment liabilities 751,418     1,000,441  
Unallocated liabilities 1,632,839  1,242,178  
Total liabilities as per statement of financial position 2,384,257  2,242,619  

37.3

37.4 Segment assets reported above comprising of property, plant and equipment and stock in trade.

37.5 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2022 are located in Pakistan.

37.6

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
Financial risk management

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

Risk Management Framework

38.1 Credit risk

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of 
financial instruments:

The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the company, to set appropriate policies and systems and reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market condition and the company's activities. The Company, through its standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks of the Company.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

Revenue from a major customer of seamless segment represents an aggregate amount of Rs. 11.348 
million (2021: Rs. 31.568 million) of total seamless segment revenue of Rs. 21.508 million (2021: 78.440 
million). Further, revenue from a major customer of coating segment represents an aggregate amount of 
Rs. 110.927 million (2021: Rs. 18.802 million) out of total 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure 
to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments from its customers and 
except for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized enterprises, the 
management strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small and medium sized 
enterprises, the management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards them and makes 
provisions against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. Cash is held only with banks with high 
quality credit worthiness.

Segment revenue reported above are revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales during the year (June 2021 nil)

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Reconciliation of segment assets and segment liabilities with total assets and liabilities in the statement of 
financial position is as follows:



20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

427,599       391,425           
-               -                   

Accrued Interest 31 2                  -               36,174             
427,599       427,599           

-               -                   
Reclassified into long term loan 18 (66,760)        -                   

Defered liability 19 (360,839)      -                   
Balance at the end of the year -               427,599           

Reclassificatin in the year have been ignored for cash flow statement purposes.

20.2

2022 2021
21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS/DIRECTORS ADVANCES - Unsecured Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

471,508       333,092           

471,508       333,092           

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Contingencies

22.1.1

22.1.2 Tax Contigencies

Custom Duty/Sales Tax

22.1.3

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1

22.2.2

The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) has levied Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) in 
accordance with GIDC Act 2015 and has sent a bill of Rs 90 million for the levy of GIDC cess of previous periods up to 
and including the year 2021. The company has challenged this bill and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh 
contending the said levy was not legal as per the para 37 & 42 of the order passed by the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan and obtain a stay order against the payment of aforesaid bill of SSGC. The legal advisor of the company has 
expressed his legal opinion stating that, the matter is ‘subjudice ’ before the court and there would not be any likelihood 
that claim of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) would be materialized.

The Collector of Custom, Hyderabad issued the show cause notice No 832 dated 17/09/2020 and subsequently filled an 
FIR in this case against some Directors of Huffaz Seamless Pipes Industries Limited in respect of Custom duty & Sales 
Tax covering an amount of Rs. 61.766 million. The Company approached Honorable High Court of Sindh in this regard 
and obtained stay order. The matter is ‘subjudice ’ as the case is proceeded in Honorable High Court of Sindh. Legal 
counsel of the company is optimistic that, there would be no adverse consequences against the Company regarding 
this case and the outcome would be in the favor of the company.

Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounting to Rs. 13.129 million  (2021: Rs. 27.177 million) have been furnished in 
favor of various customers. 

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 0.000 million (2021: Rs. 4.333 million).

The facility for opening letters of Credit/Guarantees as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 300 million (2021: Rs. 300 
million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million,

Short term sponsors loan

This represents unsecured and interest free advance from sponsors/directors 
repayable on demand.

Creditors and Advances from customers included balances due to associated undertaking Rs 19,164 thousand and Rs 
10,522 thousand respectively. The maximum amounts due at any time during the year were Rs 19,164 thousand and 
Rs 10,522 thousand respectively.

Payments made during the year

Allocation for the period
Balance as at 1 July
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Maximum Maximum 
exposure exposure

Long Term deposits 10,813       -              6,936        -             

Trade debts 33,281       33,281        19,990      19,990       

Trade Deposits 7,600         -              33,319      -             

Other receivables 11,599       11,599        27,177      27,177       

Bank balances 12,412       12,412        22,233      22,233       

75,705       57,292        109,655    72,467       

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by type of customer is as follows: 
2022 2021

Re-stated
-----(Rupees in '000) -----

Dealers and distributors 659           5,976         
End-user customers 32,622      14,014       

33,281      19,990       

Short term Long term

Local banks C to A1+ B to AAA

2022 2021
Credit 
Rated

National Bank of Pakistan        121.27 A1+              121            121 
Meezan Bank Ltd   10,031.67 A1+         10,032       10,032 
MCB Bank Ltd          23.87 A1+                24            372 
Bank Islami        927.25 A1+              927            927 
Bank Al Habib Ltd     1,825.90 A1+           1,826         2,484 
HABIB METROPOLITON        511.71 A1+              512 

Other Banks A1+              173         8,297 
Total         13,615       22,233 

38.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,
including interest payments: 

2021

As at the year end the Company's most significant customers included a distributor from whom Rs. 0.659 million was due (2021: 
Rs.2.241 million) and an end-user from whom Rs. 32.622 million was due (2021: Rs. 19.190 million).

'-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

2022 Re-stated

---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------

Carrying 
value

Carrying 
value

The Company deposits its funds with banks carrying good credit standings assessed by reputable credit agencies. These banks 
are credit rated as follows:

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Six months 
or less

Six to 
twelve 

months

Two to 
five years

Non-Derivative ---------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------
Financial liabilities

Long Term Loan 49,348       49,348          -              49,348      
Short Term Sponsors
  Advances 471,508     471,508        -             471,508      -           -             
Creditors, Accrued Liabilities 110,609     110,609        -             110,609      -           -             

631,465     631,465        -             582,117      49,348      -             

Re-stated
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Six months 
or less

Six to twelve 
months

Two to 
Five years

Non-Derivative ---------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------
Financial liabilities
Short Term Sponsors
  Advances 333,092     333,092        -               333,092      -             -               

120,031     120,031        -               120,031      -             -               
453,123     453,123        -             453,123      -           -             

38.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. Market risk comprises
of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate
risk only. 

38.3.1 Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign
exchange rates. 
It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchase and borrowings and sales that are denominated in a foreign
currency (primarily U.S. Dollar). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows: 

Rupees in US Dollars Rupees in US Dollars
'000 in '000 '000 in '000

Import Bills Payable -             -              (4,334)      (26)             
Foreign currency bank accounts 21              0.125          21             0.125         

21              0.125          (95,536)    (568)           

Following are the significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Balance sheet date rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated Re-stated

US Dollars 184.95 166.20 206.00 163.91

20212022

Creditors, Accrued liabilities 
& Bills payable

2022

2021

Re-stated

Average rates

-----------(Rupees in '000)----------- -----------(Rupees in '000)-----------
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Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Six months 
or less

Six to 
twelve 

months

Two to 
five years

Non-Derivative ---------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------
Financial liabilities

Long Term Loan 49,348       49,348          -              49,348      
Short Term Sponsors
  Advances 471,508     471,508        -             471,508      -           -             
Creditors, Accrued Liabilities 110,609     110,609        -             110,609      -           -             

631,465     631,465        -             582,117      49,348      -             

Re-stated
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Six months 
or less

Six to twelve 
months

Two to 
Five years

Non-Derivative ---------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)---------------------------------------------
Financial liabilities
Short Term Sponsors
  Advances 333,092     333,092        -               333,092      -             -               

120,031     120,031        -               120,031      -             -               
453,123     453,123        -             453,123      -           -             

38.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. Market risk comprises
of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate
risk only. 

38.3.1 Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign
exchange rates. 
It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchase and borrowings and sales that are denominated in a foreign
currency (primarily U.S. Dollar). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows: 

Rupees in US Dollars Rupees in US Dollars
'000 in '000 '000 in '000

Import Bills Payable -             -              (4,334)      (26)             
Foreign currency bank accounts 21              0.125          21             0.125         

21              0.125          (95,536)    (568)           

Following are the significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Balance sheet date rate
2022 2021 2022 2021

Re-stated Re-stated

US Dollars 184.95 166.20 206.00 163.91

20212022

Creditors, Accrued liabilities 
& Bills payable

2022

2021

Re-stated

Average rates

-----------(Rupees in '000)----------- -----------(Rupees in '000)-----------



2022 2021
27. OTHER OPERATING CHARGES Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)-----
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -               -               
Workers' Welfare Fund -               -               
Exchange loss -               -               

-               -               

27.1

28. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Notinal income 17,412         -               
Scrap sales -               2,966           
Interest On Deposit/ Advance of Joint venture company net off ECL -               (467)             
Others 28.1 -               2,787           

17,412         5,285           

28.1

29. FINANCE COST

Interest on workers' profit participation fund 19.1 -               36,174         
Bank charges 918              798              

918              36,972         

Carrying value of  interest-free long term loan (Note# 18) has been remeasured at present value at the 
discount rate of 11% and the diffrence arrived at between the carrying value of long term loan liability 
and present value is notional income recorded in the current period. Rewinding of notional income 
would be recorded in the subsequent period upon repayment of the installement of long term loan at the 
original amount.

Due to losses (including tax losses in current and previous period, there were no other operating 
charges recorded by the company)

30. TAXATION

2022 2021
Re-stated

-----(Rupees in '000)------

Current
for the year 1,680           1,545           
for prior years (350)             (3,944)          

1,330           (2,399)          
Deferred (28,817)        (26,085)        

(27,487)        (28,484)        

30.1

30.2

Tax Year
2021 1,458 1,545
2020 13,960 17,904
2019 49,033 59,373
2018 44,524 52,326
2017 63,965 64,320

30.3 Relationship between tax expenses and accounting profit

2022 2021
Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

(Loss)/Profit before taxation (135,165)      (138,537)      
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (39,198)        (39,089)        
Tax effect of temporary / permanent difference (28,817)        (13,977)        
Effect of prior year charges (350)             (3,944)          
Reduction in Tax liability due to Rebates -                   -               
Net Tax effect due to export sales -                   -               
Turnover Tax 1,680           1,545           
Effect of change in tax rate -                   -               
Others disallowances due to turnover tax 39,198         37,742         

(27,487)        (17,723)        

Provision of 

Sufficient provision for tax has been made in these consolidated financial statements taking into
account the profit or loss for the year and various admissible and inadmissible allowances and
deduction under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Tax Assessment
.----------(Rupees in '000') -----------

The management believes amount provided for income tax liability for current and previous year has 
been in accordance with the prevalent income tax law and sufficient enough to meet the tax liability of 
the company. An analysis of tax provision and tax assessment for past 5 years is as under:
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Sensitivity analysis

38.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings
from banks. At the statement of financial position date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing 
financial instrument was as follows: 

Carrying amount
2022 2021

Re-stated
(Rupees in '000)

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities 0 0

All borrowings bear variable interest rate and are indexed to KIBOR. Borrowing is generally determined on the basis
of business needs. Company is not exposed to interest rate risk

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

38.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

A 5.0% change in Rupee against US Dollar at June 30, 2022 would have decreased equity an increased post tax loss by Rs. 6.76 
million (2021: Rs. 4.8 million @ 5%). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remains constant. 
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021.

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased the equity and  increased loss as of June 
30, 2022 by Rs. 0.00 million (2021: Rs. 0.960 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency 
rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements represents their fair values. 

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss account. 
Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit and loss account.



2022 2021
27. OTHER OPERATING CHARGES Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)-----
Workers' Profit Participation Fund -               -               
Workers' Welfare Fund -               -               
Exchange loss -               -               

-               -               

27.1

28. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Notinal income 17,412         -               
Scrap sales -               2,966           
Interest On Deposit/ Advance of Joint venture company net off ECL -               (467)             
Others 28.1 -               2,787           

17,412         5,285           

28.1

29. FINANCE COST

Interest on workers' profit participation fund 19.1 -               36,174         
Bank charges 918              798              

918              36,972         

Carrying value of  interest-free long term loan (Note# 18) has been remeasured at present value at the 
discount rate of 11% and the diffrence arrived at between the carrying value of long term loan liability 
and present value is notional income recorded in the current period. Rewinding of notional income 
would be recorded in the subsequent period upon repayment of the installement of long term loan at the 
original amount.

Due to losses (including tax losses in current and previous period, there were no other operating 
charges recorded by the company)

30. TAXATION

2022 2021
Re-stated

-----(Rupees in '000)------

Current
for the year 1,680           1,545           
for prior years (350)             (3,944)          

1,330           (2,399)          
Deferred (28,817)        (26,085)        

(27,487)        (28,484)        

30.1

30.2

Tax Year
2021 1,458 1,545
2020 13,960 17,904
2019 49,033 59,373
2018 44,524 52,326
2017 63,965 64,320

30.3 Relationship between tax expenses and accounting profit

2022 2021
Re-stated

------(Rupees in '000)------

(Loss)/Profit before taxation (135,165)      (138,537)      
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (39,198)        (39,089)        
Tax effect of temporary / permanent difference (28,817)        (13,977)        
Effect of prior year charges (350)             (3,944)          
Reduction in Tax liability due to Rebates -                   -               
Net Tax effect due to export sales -                   -               
Turnover Tax 1,680           1,545           
Effect of change in tax rate -                   -               
Others disallowances due to turnover tax 39,198         37,742         

(27,487)        (17,723)        

Provision of 

Sufficient provision for tax has been made in these consolidated financial statements taking into
account the profit or loss for the year and various admissible and inadmissible allowances and
deduction under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Tax Assessment
.----------(Rupees in '000') -----------

The management believes amount provided for income tax liability for current and previous year has 
been in accordance with the prevalent income tax law and sufficient enough to meet the tax liability of 
the company. An analysis of tax provision and tax assessment for past 5 years is as under:
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38.4.1 Measurement Of Fair Values

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
             liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Loans 
and 

receivabl
e

Other 
financial 
assets

Liabilities 
at fair 
value 

through 
profit and 

loss

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Long term deposits 10,813  -        -         -         10,813   -          10,813   -          

Trade debts-considered good 33,281  -        -         -         33,281   -          33,281   -          
39,399  

-        -         -         39,399   -          39,399   -          

Other receivables 35,491  -        -         -         35,491   -          35,491   -          
Cash and bank balances 12,448  -        -         -         12,448   -          12,448   -          

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
- Derivative financial liabilities -        -        -         -         -             -          -         -          

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables -        -        -         279,910 279,910 -          279,910 -          
Long term loan 49,348   49,348   49,348   
Short-term sponsors' advances -        -        -         471,508 471,508 -          471,508 -          

Amount in Rs '000'

Loan, advances, trade deposits

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Management engage an independent external expert / valuer to carry out valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. Land and Building , Plant &
Machinery) and obtain rate from financial institution to value derivative financial instruments. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by
management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the management recognizes transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers
between different levels of fair values mentioned above.

30-Jun-22



31. (LOSS) PER SHARE - basic and diluted 2022 2021
Re-stated

(107,678)      (110,053)      

55,484         55,484         

(Loss) per share - basic and diluted (1.94)            (1.98)            
There was no diluted earning per share

32. Changes in working capital 
Decrease / (increase) in current assets 
Stores and spare parts (34,682)        4,128           
Stock in trade (52,684)        (59,435)        
Trade debts (13,291)        (8,128)          
Loans and advances, trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables (4,427)          (1,664)          
Trade deposits 24,001         (1,962)          
Other Receivable 9,837           (7,447)          

(71,246)        (74,508)        
Increase in current liability
Trade and other payables 38,656         (59,730)        

(32,590)        (134,238)      
32.1 There were no non-cash assets or liabilities effecting cash flow statement.

33. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Managerial remuneration 6,274    6,274 -           -            12,538         9,866           
House rent 2,823    2,823 -           -            5,642           4,440           
Utilities -        -     -           -            1,253           987              
Gratuity 758       758    -           -            1,991           1,274           

9,855    9,855 -           -            21,424         16,567         

Number of persons 1 1 1 1 9 9

33.1

33.2

-----------(Rupees in '000)-----------

-----------(Rupees)-----------

(Loss) after tax

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

Chief Executive Director Executives

(Number in '000)

------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------

In addition to the above Chief Executive, Director, Executive and certain other employees are provided with free 
use of Company maintained vehicles in accordance with the Company's policy.

During the year no amount (2021: Rs. 75 thousand) was paid to Directors for attending the Board of Directors' 
meeting. 
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Loans 
and 

receivabl
e

Other 
financial 
assets

Liabilities 
at fair 
value 

through 
profit and 

loss

Other 
Financial 
Liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value

Long term deposits 6,936    -        -         -         6,936     -          6,936     -          

Trade debts-considered good 19,990  -        -         -         -             -          -             -          

Loan, advances, trade deposits 58,973  -        -         -         60,691   -          60,691   -          

Other receivables 45,328  -        -         -         45,328   -          45,328   -          
Cash and bank balances 22,408  -        -         -         22,408   -          22,408   -          

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
- Derivative financial liabilities -        -        -         -         -             -          -         -          

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables -        -        -         677,435 677,435 -          677,435 -          
Short-term sponsors' advances -        -        -         333,092 333,092 -          333,092 -          

- Land and Building 30-Jun-20

Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial liabilities

- Forward exchange contract

30-Jun-21

Carrying Amount Fair Value

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value:

Re-stated

The fair value of forward exchange
contracts is determined based on the
forward exchange rates as at reporting
date. The fair value of forward exchange
contract are included in level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy. However at balance
sheet date no forward exchange
contract.

Assets measured at fair 
value

Date of 
valuation

Valuation approach and inputs used Inter-relationship 
between significant
unobservable 
inputs and fair 

The valuation model is based on price
per square feet for building and per
acre for land. In determining the
valuations for land and buildings, the
valuer refers to current market
conditions, structure, sale prices of
comparable land in similar location
adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as land size and
inquires with numerous independent
local estate agents / realtors in the
vicinity to establish the present market
value. The fair valuation of land and
building are considered to represent a
level 3 valuation based on significant
non-observable inputs being the
location and condition of the assets.

The fair value are subject to change
owing to changes in input. However, the
management does not expect there to be
a material sensitivity to the fair values
arising from the non-observable inputs.



34. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
2022 2021

Seamless Pipe and Tubes
Normal Capacity 55,000     55,000       
Actual Production 270          800            
Percentage 0.5% 1.5%

Coating of Seamless Tubular Products
Normal Capacity 30,000     30,000       
Actual Production 3,318       4,829         
Percentage 11.1% 16.1%

Machinery & Machinery Components
Normal Capacity 3,500       3,500         
Actual Production -           -             
Percentage -           -             

Capacity under utilized in the year due to shortage of demand.

35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

-------Metric Ton---------

The production capacity of the plant is dependent on the relative proportions of the various types of seamless 
pipes and tubes produced by the company.

The permanent number of employees as at year end were 100 (2021: 102) and total average number of 
employees were 96 (2021: 108) the average number of factory employees in the year were 86 (2021: 96).
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38.5 Capital risk management

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The quantitative data of share capital issued including cash bonus and right issues have been disclosed in Note 16.

Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalent and short-term deposits, other receivable, trade receivables,
trade payables, short term borrowing and other current liabilities closely approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-
term maturities of these instruments. For long term deposit asset and long term liabilities, management consider that their carrying
values approximates fair value owing to credit standing of counterparties and interest payable on borrowings are market rate. The
fair value of the Land and Building on freehold land are determined by an independent valuer based on price per square feet and
price per acre and current replacement cost method adjusted for depreciation factor for existing asset in use. The resulting fair
value is a level 3 fair value measurement. Fair values of investment in joint venture is disclosed in note 7 investments.

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support
the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend to the
shareholders or issue bonus / new shares.
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As at June 30, 



40. GENERAL

40.1 Corresponding Figures

40.2 Date of authorization for issue

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Haseeb Muhammad Anwar Khan
Chief Executive    Director Chief Financial Officer

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the company and 
authorized for issue on January 22, 2024.

Other then the restaement given in note # 39 made in the current period, some of the previous period
balances have been rearranged / reclassified wherever necessary to facilitate better comparison in
the current period.
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For the year ended June 30 2020 to 2022
`














